
PENSION COMMITTEE
10.00 am

FRIDAY 9 FEBRUARY 2018

Meeting Room 1&2 - Shire Hall, 
Gloucester

MEETING PAPERS





Published 1 February 2018

PENSION COMMITTEE
TIME: 10.00 am
DATE: Friday 9 February 2018
VENUE: Meeting Room 1&2 - Shire Hall, Gloucester

A G E N D A

ITEM TOPIC CONTACT

1.  Apologies Andrea 
Griffiths

2.  Declarations of Interest - 
Members of the Committee are invited to declare any financial or 
pecuniary interest related to specific matters on the agenda.

Please see note (a) at the end of the agenda.

Andrea 
Griffiths

3.  Public Questions - 
To answer any written questions about matters that are within the 
powers and duties of the Committee. The closing date/time for the 
receipt of questions is 10.00am on 2nd February 2018.

To answer any oral question(s) put by members of the public.

Depending on the nature of the oral questions asked it may not be 
possible to provide a comprehensive answer at the meeting, in which 
case a written answer will be supplied as soon as reasonably possible 
after the meeting.

Andrea 
Griffiths

4.  Members' Questions - 
To answer any written members’ questions. The closing date/time for 
the receipt of questions is 10.00am on 2nd February 2018.

Andrea 
Griffiths

5.  Minutes - (Pages 1 - 10)
To approve as a correct record the Minutes of the meeting held on 10th 
November  2017.

Andrea 
Griffiths

6.  Pension Fund Risk Register (Pages 11 - 18) Mark Spilsbury
Tel: 01452 
426127

7.  Market Valuations and Quarterly Performance Review of the 
Pension Fund: Quarter 4 (Pages 19 - 44)

Mark Spilsbury
Tel: 01452 



Published 1 February 2018

426127
8.  Brunel Pension Partnership Oversight Board Minutes (Pages 

45 - 50)
Cllr Ray 
Theodoulou

9.  Annual Pensioners Newsletter (Pages 51 - 54) Mark Spilsbury
Tel: 01452 
426127

10.  Training: Verbal Update Mark Spilsbury
Tel: 01452 
426127

11.  Exclusion of the press and public 
Resolved

 That in accordance with Section 100 A (4) of the Local 
Government Act 1972 the public be excluded from the 
meeting for the following agenda items, because it is likely 
that if members of the public were present there would be 
disclosure to them of exempt information as defined in 
paragraph 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12 A to the Act and the 
public interest in withholding the information outweighs the 
public interest in disclosing the information to the public.

Cllr Ray 
Theodoulou

12.  Exempt Minutes (Pages 55 - 64)
To approve as a correct record the exempt minutes of the 
meetings held on 10th November 2017.

Andrea 
Griffiths

13.  Brunel Pension Partnership Update Report (Pages 65 - 78) Matthew 
Trebilcock 
(BPP)

14.  Brunel Pension Partnership Investment Portfolios and 
briefing on Passive mandates (Pages 79 - 114)

Mark Mansley 
(BPP)

15.  Economic Review Q4 2017 & Feedback from Managers 
Meetings (Pages 115 - 132)

Mark Spilsbury
Tel: 01452 
426127

16.  Implementation of New Investment Proposals (Pages 133 - 
140)

Mark Spilsbury
Tel: 01452 
426127

17.  Admission Body Requests (Pages 141 - 142) Mark Spilsbury
Tel: 01452 
426127

18.  Investment Manager Presentation CBRE (Pages 143 - 204) Mark Spilsbury
Tel: 01452 
426127



Published 1 February 2018

NOTES

(a) MEMBERSHIP – Councillors Cllr Colin Hay, Cllr Shaun Parsons, 
Cllr Lynden Stowe, Cllr Ray Theodoulou, Cllr David Brown and 
Cllr Brian Oosthuysen

COOPTEES -   Cllr Nigel Cooper and Peter Clark

(b) DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST – Members requiring advice or clarification 
about whether to make a declaration of interest are invited to contact the 
Monitoring Officer: Jane Burns 01452 3284721 /fax: 42425149/e-mail: 
jane.burns@gloucestershire.gov.uk prior to the commencement of the meeting. 

GENERAL ARRANGEMENTS

(1) Will Members please sign the attendance list.

EVACUATION PROCEDURE - in the event of the fire alarms sounding during the 
meeting please leave as directed in a calm and orderly manner and go to the 
assembly point which is outside the main entrance to Shire Hall in Westgate Street.  
Please remain there and await further instructions.

mailto:jane.burns@gloucestershire.gov.uk


This page is intentionally left blank



- 1 -

PENSION COMMITTEE
MINUTES of the meeting of the Pension Committee held on Friday 10 November 
2017 commencing at 10.00 am.

PRESENT
MEMBERSHIP:

Cllr Colin Hay
Cllr Shaun Parsons
Cllr Lynden Stowe
Cllr Ray Theodoulou

Cllr David Brown
Cllr Brian Oosthuysen
Peter Clark

Apologies: Cllr Nigel Cooper

In Attendance:

61. APOLOGIES 

Apologies were received from Nigel Cooper.  

62. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST - 

Councillor Theodoulou, Parsons and Stowe declared they were members of 
Cotswold District Council.  Councillor Hay declared he was a member of 
Cheltenham Borough Council.  

63. MINUTES - 

The public summary minutes of the meeting held on the 1st September 2017 were 
approved as a correct record and signed by the Chairman.  

Members’ attention was drawn to the action sheet.  In relation to Action 1, the Clerk 
informed the Committee that two nominations (Councillor Hay & Councillor Parsons) for the 
Vice-Chairmanship had been received by Democratic Services.    On being put to the vote, 
Councillor Parsons was duly elected as Vice- Chairman. 

Mark Spilsbury informed the Committee with regards to Action 4, that 91% of County 
Council Employees were members of the LGPS. 

Resolved 

That Councillor Parsons was duly elected as the Vice-Chairman of the Pensions 
Committee.    

Page 1

Agenda Item 5



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 2 -

That the public minutes of the meeting held on the 1st September 2017 be approved 
as a correct record.  

64. PUBLIC QUESTIONS - 

No public questions were received.  

65. MEMBERS' QUESTIONS - 

No written Members questions were received.

Councillor Hay raised a verbal question in relation to public interest in off shore tax 
havens and requested to know if any of GCC’s investments were in such accounts.  
It was agreed that the Head of Pensions would contact all of the investment 
managers used by the Gloucestershire Fund and seek assurances that none of the 
funds investments were placed “off shore” in order to avoid the payment of tax. IT 
was also agreed that a statement would be brought back to the next meeting of the 
Committee.  (Action MS)

Steve Tyson, Independent Advisor, referred to the notion of responsible 
investments.  It was noted that the Brunel Partnership would ensure better 
engagement and responsible investing. 

Councillor Oosthuysen referred to an email from one of his constituents in relation 
to fossil fuel investment and the possibility of such investments becoming stranded 
assets.  He requested to know if the Gloucestershire LGPS was involved with such 
investments, it was explained that the LGPS invested in Shell, BP and other 
renewable energy sources, etc.  Members were informed that these were legitimate 
investments.   The Independent Advisor explained that a major theme for 
investments would be managing the Carbon Footprint, it was suggested that these 
concerns should be considered when agreeing the investment portfolios to be used 
under the  Brunel Pension Partnership.

In response to a question, it was confirmed that Brunel would have ethical 
investment portfolios available.  Members agreed that it would be advisable to 
incorporate training on responsible ethical investing, carbon footprints, etc, into the 
next member training session.  (Action – MS)

66. MARKET VALUATIONS AND QUARTERLY PERFORMANCE REVIEW OF THE 
PENSION FUND: QUARTER 3 2017 

 Head of Pension Fund, Mark Spilsbury, presented an overview of market 
valuations and an update on the performance of the Gloucestershire Local 
Government Pension Scheme, (LGPS), as at 30 September 2017. It was noted that 
this report used the new strategic asset allocation as agreed by Committee in 
March 2017, for implementation from 1 April 2017.  The short term (pre-Brunel) 
strategic asset allocation was shown within the report.   Members were informed 
that this was the last time the report would be received by the Committee in this 
format.  

Page 2



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 3 -

The report was sub-divided into four areas, detailing information on i) Manager 
Performance; ii) Asset Allocation; iii) Market Values, and iv) Cash Position. The 
Committee discussed the report in detail.  

The Head of Pension Fund informed members that performance was slightly above 
the benchmark targets for Quarter 3.  It was reported that the performance return 
was positive during the past 12 months with a 12% return being delivered across 
the full portfolio.  

In response to a question the Committee were informed that 50% of the investment 
in the Blackrock Aquila Life mandate was hedged against curreny changes.   
Members also commented on Standard Life GARS poor performance.  

It was agreed that the performance of the private debt mandates would be be 
included within future performance reports.  

Members were advised that State Street had been appointed as the new custodian 
to the Brunel Partnership.  It was noted that Gloucestershire LGPS was within the 
transition second tranche, and would make the transition on the 15th December 
2017.  The Committee noted that the new report format would be an example of 
best practice and would  be more user friendly than then current reporting format, 
and would be capable of amendment if required by the Committee.  

The Head of the Pension Fund explained that State Street would do the 
reconciliation detail for individual funds.  The Committee were advised that the 
report would contain historical data for comparison.

Resolved 

That the performance report was noted.  

67. PENSION FUND RISK REGISTER 

The Administrative Authority, Gloucestershire County Council was required to 
maintain, and keep under review, a Risk Register for the Gloucestershire Pension 
Fund, in which the Council is required to identify any risks associated with the 
Pension Fund and the measures or controls taken to counter such risks. The Risk 
Register was last reviewed by the Pension Committee in September 2017 and by 
the Pension Board in October 2017. 

Mark Spilsbury, Head of the Pension Fund, informed members that since the Risk 
Register was reviewed by the Pension Board in October 2017, the Board had 
requested that the following new risk be included: 
- Loss of experience on the Pension Fund Committee or Pension Board, 

and/or the lack of adequate training, resulting in a negative impact on 
governance arrangements within the Gloucestershire LGPS.  

Page 3



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 4 -

Members noted that the risk to GCC was mainly every four years, in terms of 
elections.  The Committee agreed that this risk should be included on the Risk 
Register The Head of the Pension Fund explained that it would be included as 
Governance Risk 8.   

John Arthur, Independent Advisor, explained that he was previously involved with 
MIFIID at Allenbridge, and the risk was mitigated in the opt up process, however it 
could create issues if not managed carefully.  Members felt reassured that transition 
mechanisms were in place within the MIFIID directive.    

The Director of Strategic Finance proposed that the transition to the new custodian 
State Street should also be included as an additional risk within the register, 
members concurred with the proposal.  

In response to a question, it was noted that the newly appointed committee member 
had received a one to one in house briefing session, in addition to LGPS 
Fundamentals Training Course.   The Director of Strategic Finance explained that 
training was mandatory and members were expected to keep their training records 
up to date.  The Independent Advisor added the Devon Pension Committee 
members undertook more training, which was well received.  The Chairman 
requested that officers look at the training options available to Pension Committee 
Members and report back accordingly. (Action – MS) 

Peter Clarke, Co-opted member also explained as an employee it was not always 
possible to have time off from work to attend such training events and consideration 
should be given to this factor.  The Chairman noted the pointed raised and 
requested officers to consider these points when arranging training sessions.  

The committee noted and agreed the amendments to the Risk Register, as 
highlighted by the published report and agreed at the meeting.  

Resolved 
 
That the Committee reviewed and agreed the attached Risk Register, 
including the following amendments: 
- Loss of experience on the Pension Fund Committee or Pension Board, 

and/or the lack of adequate training, resulting in a negative impact on 
governance arrangements within the Gloucestershire LGPS.  
(Governance Risk 8)

- That the transition to State Street as the custodian should also be 
included within the Risk Register.   

68. PENSION BOARD MINUTES 

Councillor Moor presented the minutes of the Pension Board meeting held on 16th 
October 2017.  The Board requested to view the draft annual report for future years 
prior to publication, the Chairman agreed to the request.    (Action – MS)

Page 4



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 5 -

During the discussion, it was noted that there was a typographical error at Minute 
47, the term ‘employee’ should be amended to ‘employer’.         (Action –MS)

Resolved 

That the minutes of the Pension Board meeting held on 16th October  2017 
were duly noted, subject to the amendment of the typographical error at 
Minute 47.

69. ANNUAL PENSIONERS NEWSLETTER 

The Head of the Pension Fund, Mark Spilsbury presented the report.  He explained 
that the Annual Newsletter contained factual information which was designed to 
help LGPS members have a clearer understanding of the scheme.  

During the discussion, the committee suggested that the newsletter should contain 
a reminder to pensioners to ensure that they contact the Pension Team and update 
personal information held as appropriate. In addition, it was noted that information 
on the National Fraud Initiative should be emphasised in the new version, as a 
delaying in mentioning any overpayment, would increase the amount to be repaid.  
Members didn’t wish to frighten people but felt the message should be clear.    
(Action – MS)

The Committee requested that they received the Annual Pensioners Newsletter for 
information purposes at the February 2018 meeting. 
(Action – MS)

Resolved 

That the committee review future newsletters.

At this juncture, the Committee adjourned the meeting to attend the Remembrance 
Service and reconvened shortly afterwards.

70. TRAINING UPDATE 

The Head of the Pension Fund, Mark Spilsbury, updated the Committee on 
forthcoming training events and explained that all training events would be 
circulated via email in the future.  Committee members were requested to contact 
Mark Spilsbury if they wished to attend any of the training events.   

It was noted that a training needs questionnaire had been tabled at the meeting, 
members were request to complete and submit their questionnaire as soon as 
possible.  (Action – Members of the Committee)

Members wished to know if their role on the Pension Committee would change in 
light of the Brunel Partnership arrangements. It was explained that the vast majority 
of their current role would continue, albeit that there would be a greater emphasis of 

Page 5



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 6 -

the Strategic Asset Allocation, with the Committee no longer being involved in the 
appointment and/or removal of Investment Managers.

The Head of the Pension Fund suggested that it would be beneficial to invite 
representatives from the Brunel Partnership to the next meeting of the Committee.  
In order to discuss the arrangements, provide a short presentation and answer any 
questions members may have.  (Action – MS) 

Resolved 

That the update be noted and that representatives from the Brunel 
Partnership be invited to the next meeting.  

71. EXCLUSION OF THE PRESS AND PUBLIC 

It was resolved 

That in accordance with Section 100 A (4) of the Local Government Act 1972 
the public be excluded from the meeting for the following agenda items, 
because it is likely that if members of the public were present there would be 
disclosure to them of exempt information as defined in paragraph 3 & 5 of 
Part 1 of Schedule 12 A to the Act and the public interest in withholding the 
information outweighs the public interest in disclosing the information to the 
public.

72. EXEMPT MINUTES 

The exempt minutes of the meeting held on 1st September 2017 were agreed as a 
correct record and signed by the Chairman.

Resolved 

That the exempt minutes of the meeting held on the 1st September 2017 be 
approved as a correct record.  

73. PENSION BOARD EXEMPT MINUTES 

During the discussion, it was noted that there was a typographical error at Minute 
47, the term ‘employee’ should be amended to ‘employer’.  (Action –MS)

Resolved 

That the exempt minutes of the Pension Board meeting held on 16th October  
2017 were duly noted, subject to the amendment of the typographical error at 
Minute 47.

74. PENSION ADMINISTRATION PERFORMANCE 

The Head of the Pension Fund, Mark Spilsbury presented the report in detail.  

Page 6



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 7 -

Resolved

That the report was duly noted and the Committee agreed that performance 
figures would be reported on a six monthly basis.  

75. INVESTMENT UPDATE 

The Independent Pension Advisor, Steve Tyson, presented information on 
investment issues and the position of the financial markets.  

Resolved 

That the update was duly noted.

76. MEETING WITH FUND MANAGER 

The Head of the Pension Fund, Mark Spilsbury gave a detailed presentation.

Resolved 

That the report be noted.

77. BRUNEL PENSION PARTNERSHIP 

The Head of the Pension Fund, Mark Spilsbury informed the Committee, as to the 
current position.  

Resolved

That the update be received.   

78. ADMISSION BODY REQUEST 

The Committee received a report from the Director of Strategic Finance.  

Resolved 

That the Committee approved the Admission Body request.

79. INVESTMENT PRESENTATION 

Peter Hunt, David Wright and Richard Matthieson from Blackrock gave a detailed 
presentation, which highlighted the Strategic Asset Allocation to the end of 
September 2017.  

CHAIRMAN

Page 7



Minutes subject to their acceptance as a 
correct record at the next meeting

- 8 -

Meeting concluded at 1.15 pm

Page 8



Pension Committee – 10th November 2017

Topic Action Responsibility Progress
1 Members 

Questions
The Head of Pensions would 
contact all of the investment 
managers used by the 
Gloucestershire Fund and seek 
assurances that none of the funds 
investments were placed “off 
shore” in order to avoid the 
payment of tax.

Members agreed that it would be 
advisable for them to be provided 
with training on responsible ethical 
investing, carbon footprints, etc. 

Mark Spilsbury 

Mark Spilsbury

Written assurances have been received back from all of 
the Fund Managers used by the Gloucestershire LGPS 
that none of the funds investments under their 
management were placed “off shore” in order to avoid the 
payment of tax.

A recommended Stewardship Code is being produced in 
partnership with Faith Ward, the Chief Responsible 
Investment Officer at the Brunel Pension Partnership Ltd. 
This will be presented to the 11th May 2018 Committee 
and Faith will attend to provide training on ethical 
investment including the carbon footprint.

2 PENSION 
FUND RISK 
REGISTER

The Chairman requested that 
officers look at the training options 
available to Pension Committee 
Members and report back 
accordingly.

Mark Spilsbury A key task to be undertaken at the 9th February meeting of the 
Committee is to agree the indicative (firm for the passive 
mandates) investment allocations to the various portfolio’s 
available under the Brunel Pension Partnership. Due to the 
significance of this the Chief Investment Officer from the Brunel 
Pension Partnership will attend the meeting to present and 
provide training on the various portfolio’s.

With regard to other training options, details of suitable 
conferences etc. will be circulated to all members of the 
Pension Committee.
30/1/18 Standard Life Conference details circulated on 10/1/18

In terms of on-line training, the Pensions Regulator offers the 
highly acclaimed Trustee Toolkit which offers excellent training 
in a series of modules that can be done from home at the 
individual’s convenience. There are sections on Defined 
Benefit schemes that are aimed at all Trustees and those with 
oversight of pension funds.

It is all very intuitive and easy to manage and can be found at
https://trusteetoolkit.thepensionsregulator.gov.uk

P
age 9

https://trusteetoolkit.thepensionsregulator.gov.uk/


316. PENSION 
BOARD 
MINUTES 

17.

18.

19. The board requested to view the 
draft annual report for future years 
prior to publication, the chairman 
agreed to the request. 

20. During the discussion, it was noted 
that there was a typographical 
error at minute 47, the term 
‘employee’ should be amended to 
‘employer’.  

Mark Spilsbury

Andrea Griffiths 

The draft Annual Report will be circulated to the Pension 
Board in the future.

Completed

4 ANNUAL 
PENSIONERS 
NEWSLETTER 

Information on the National Fraud 
Initiative should be emphasised in 
the new version.

The Committee requested that 
they received the Annual 
Pensioners Newsletter for 
information purposes at the 
9thFebruary 2018 meeting.

Mark Spilsbury

Mark Spilsbury

This is included in the Annual Pensioners newsletter.

The draft newsletter for 2018 is being submitted, for 
information, to the Pension Committee on 9th February 
2018.

5 TRAINING 
UPDATE

Members were requested to 
complete and submit their training 
needs questionnaire as soon as 
possible.  

Representatives from the Brunel 
Partnership be invited to the next 
meeting of the Committee.  To 
discuss the arrangements, provide 
a short presentation and answer 
any questions.  

Members of the 
Committee

Mark Spilsbury

Based on the completed questionnaire received the highest 
priorities for training appear to be:

 Pensions legislative and governance context
 Investments available to the LGPS/ Investment 

Performance and Risk Management.

With regard to the first of these, if the Committee agrees, 
officers will explore the possibility of arranging a training 
session of one hour to run from 9.30am to 10.30am 
immediately before the Pension Committee meeting on 11th 
May 2019, with the meeting starting at 10.30am.

Following the discussions on the Brunel Portfolio’s the 
Committee can consider whether further training on 
investments available to the LGPS is required, or whether 
future training in this area should focus on investment 
performance and risk management..

The Chief Executive Officer and/or the Relationship Director 
from the Brunel Pension Partnership will attend the meeting on 
9th February to present an update report to the Committee and 
answer questions.

P
age 10



Pension Committee
9th February 2018

Review of the
Pension Fund Risk Register 

Report of the Strategic Finance Director

Introduction

The Administering Authority is required by the Local Government Pension 
Scheme (LGPS) Regulations to maintain a Funding Strategy Statement (FSS) 
and to keep it under review. The FSS is always reviewed as part of the 
Triennial Valuation.

In preparing the FSS, the LGPS Regulations require the Administering 
Authority to have regard to the best practice guidance issued by the 
Chartered Institute of Public Finance and Accountancy (CIPFA). This 
guidance includes the need to identify risks relating to the Pension Fund and 
the measures or controls to be taken to help counter those risks. 

The Risk Register was last reviewed by the Pension Committee in November 
2017.

Following feedback from the Pension Board, the Pension Committee have 
agreed that in future a report on the Risk Register will be considered at each 
of their regular quarterly meetings.

Report

The attached Risk Register reflects the risks relating to the Pension Fund and 
indicates the significance of each risk.

As per previous reports the significance of individual risks is measured by a 
scoring system which multiplies the likelihood of the occurrence with the 
potential impact of such an occurrence. Both “likelihood” and “impact” are 
scored 1 – 5 and after multiplying both numbers together, the higher the 
product, the higher the risk.

The attached Risk Register shows each risk, scored before and after controls 
are in place (i.e. the inherent and residual risks).
The risks are referenced as follows:

Financial Risks (F)
Funding / Demography Risks (F/D)
Administration / Regulatory Risks (A/R)
Governance Risks (G)

Since the risk register was last considered by the Committee in November 
2017 the following changes have been made:

Page 11

Agenda Item 6



As requested by the Pension Board and agreed by the Pension Committee in 
November 2017, the following new governance risk 8 has been added to the 
risk register:

Loss of experience on the Pension Fund Committee or Pension Board, and/or 
the lack of adequate training, resulting in a negative impact on governance 
arrangements within the Gloucestershire LGPS.

As requested by the Director of Strategic Finance and agreed by the Pension 
Committee in November 2017, the following new governance risk 9 has been 
added to the risk register:

Transition from the current custodian to State Street Bank under the Brunel 
Pension Partnership resulting in:

 Failings during the transition
 Inadequate performance reporting post transition
 Negative impacts on the final accounts of the Pension Fund due to 

failings in the accounting reports received from State Street Bank.

As noted in the risk register, no major problems were encountered during the 
transition and assets transferred were reconciled back to the detailed records 
held by each manager. At the time of the update of the risk register the 
adequacy of the performance report and accounting reports is not known 
hence this remains a medium risk.

It is proposed that the following new governance risk 10 is added to the risk 
register:

Failure to comply with the General Data Protection Regulation, resulting in 
breaches which have to be reported to the Pension Regulator and the 
Information Commissioners Office resulting in complaints from scheme 
members and/or significant financial fines. 

As noted in the risk register, detailed guidance and support is being obtained 
from the GCC Information Management Team which will include the 
production of an action plan to detail and monitor actions required to ensure 
compliance within the Gloucestershire LGPS.

Finally a number of new period comments have been inserted into the risk 
register (which are shown in bold in the period comments column), and the 
residual risk score for risk F9 has been reduced following confirmation from all 
of our Investment Managers that they have agreed to categorise the 
Gloucestershire LGPS as professional clients.

Recommendation

The Committee are asked to review and comment on the attached updated 
Risk Register and agree to the inclusion of the new governance risk 10.

Contact Officer

Mark Spilsbury - Head of Pension Fund (01452 328920)

Page 12



Gloucestershire LGPS Pension Fund  Risk Register Version: 1d

PENSION FUND RISK REGISTER UPDATED IN JANUARY 2018 FOR CONSIDERATION BY THE PENSION COMMITTEE IN FEBRUARY 2018

L/V I/B R L/V I/B R

F1 R
Fund assets fail to deliver returns in line with the 
anticipated returns underpinning valuation of 
liabilities over the long-term

The achievement of fully funded 
pension liabilities over the long term

Head of Pension 
Fund 4 4 16

Only anticipate long-term return on a 
relatively prudent basis to reduce risk of 
under-performing.
Assets invested on the basis of specialist 
advice, in a suitably diversified manner 
across asset classes, geographies, 
managers, etc.
Analyse progress at three yearly 
valuations for all employers.  
Inter-valuation roll-forward of liabilities 
between valuations at whole Fund level.   
Actuarial Review on a like for like basis 
has confirmed a strong deficit recovery 
plan.

2 4 8 ▲ Financial

Due to increased uncertainty following the 
BREXIT vote and possible negative long 
term implications, this risk will be monitored 
to determine whether the  likelihood of this 
risk materialising needs to be increased. 
Performance over the last 1 year and 3 
year period exceed the anticipated returns 
used as part of the 2016 valuation.

11/08/2017

To monitor the long term movements on the 
fund and the investment returns being 

achieved by each asset class to consider 
whether any changes are required

Head of 
Pension 

Fund

Quarterly 
monitoring

F2 R Inappropriate long-term investment strategy. The achievement of fully funded 
pension liabilities over the long term

Head of Pension 
Fund 4 4 16

Regular monitoring of Fund's cash flow 
with actuarial estimates of future cash flow 
position.                               Overall 
investment strategy options including 
diversification considered as an integral 
part of the funding strategy.  Use of asset 
liability modelling.   Actuarial Review on a 
like for like basis has confirmed a strong 
deficit recovery plan.

2 4 8 ▲ Financial

Phased movement to new allocation is 
being undertaken in the context of 

reducing exposure to equities whilst 
maintaining adequate returns and 

minimising new transition costs before 
the transition into the Brunel Pension 
Partnership. A slightly amended asset 
allocation to the various investment 

portfolio's available under the BPP has 
been submitted to the February 18 

meeting of the Committee for 
agreement.

11/08/2017
Head of 
Pension 

Fund

Regular monitoring 
of the phased 

introduction of the 
new Strategic 

Asset allocation in 
the context of 

movement into the 
Brunel Pension 

Partnership.  

F3 R Fall in risk-free returns on Government bonds, 
leading to rise in value placed on liabilities.

The achievement of fully funded 
pension liabilities over the long term

Head of Pension 
Fund 4 3 12

Stabilisation modelling at whole Fund level 
allows for the probability of this within a 
longer term context.  
Inter-valuation monitoring, as above.
Some investment in bonds helps to 
mitigate this risk.   Actuarial Review on a 
like for like basis has confirmed a strong 
deficit recovery plan.

2 3 6 ► Financial
Return forecasts taken into account as part 
of the 2016 valuation of the fund and the 
formulation of the new investment strategy.

11/08/2017

F4 R Increasing Pension Fund deficit The achievement of fully funded 
pension liabilities over the long term

Head of Pension 
Fund 4 3 12

Actuarial review via Triennial Valuation 
and regular update reports.
Regular consideration by Pension 
Committee on manager performance 
relative to funding assumptions, funding 
position and funding strategy.  Actuarial 
Review on a like for like basis has 
confirmed a strong deficit recovery plan.

2 3 6 ► Financial

Funding deficit reduced at 2016 Fund 
Valuation and performance over the last 1 
year and 3 year period exceed the 
anticipated returns used as part of the 2016 
valuation.

11/08/2017

F5 R Active investment manager under-performance 
relative to benchmark.

Maximising investment returns to help 
the Fund achieve its funding target

Head of Pension 
Fund 4 3 12

Quarterly investment monitoring analyses 
market performance and active managers 
relative to their index benchmark.  
Diversification of investments across asset 
classes and across different fund 
managers

3 3 9 ► Financial

Due to increased uncertainty following 
the BREXIT vote and possible negative 
long term implications, this risk will be 
monitored to determine whether the  
likelihood of this risk materialising 
needs to be increased. Performance 
over the last 1 year and 3 year period 
exceed the anticipated returns used as 
part of the 2016 valuation. Transition of 
assets, initially into the passive 
portfolio's is likely to commence in 
March/April 2018. Performance in these 
new portfolio's will be closely monitored 
against agreed performance targets and 
will be reported back to the Committee.

11/08/2017

Transition of one active manager to passive 
management. Strategic Asset Allocation 
Review taking place. Monitoring of Fund 

investment performance

Head of 
Pension 

Fund

Quarterly 
monitoring

Inherent Risk 
or Opportunity

Ref O
pp

or
tu

ni
ty

/R
is

k

Risk or Opportunity Description

Benefits of taking opportunity or 
Consequences  if risk occurs and 
related objectives Owner Actions DueControls

Residual Risk 
or Opportunity

D
ire

ct
io

n 
of

 T
ra

ve
l 

Category of Risk or Opportunity

Period Comments - where changed 
since last considered by the Pension 
Committee in June 2017 are shown in 

bold italics.

All risks are 
monitored on an 
on-going basis. 

Date of last 
review. Further actions Owner

1e

P
age 13



Gloucestershire LGPS Pension Fund  Risk Register Version: 1d

L/V I/B R L/V I/B R

Inherent Risk 
or Opportunity

Ref O
pp

or
tu

ni
ty

/R
is

k

Risk or Opportunity Description

Benefits of taking opportunity or 
Consequences  if risk occurs and 
related objectives Owner Actions DueControls

Residual Risk 
or Opportunity

D
ire

ct
io

n 
of

 T
ra

ve
l 

Category of Risk or Opportunity

Period Comments - where changed 
since last considered by the Pension 
Committee in June 2017 are shown in 

bold italics.

All risks are 
monitored on an 
on-going basis. 

Date of last 
review. Further actions Owner

F6 R Pay and price inflation significantly more than 
anticipated.

The achievement of fully funded 
pension liabilities over the long term

Head of Pension 
Fund 4 2 8

The focus of the actuarial valuation 
process is on real returns on assets, net of 
price and pay increases. 
Inter-valuation monitoring, as above, gives 
early warning. 
Some investment in index-linked bonds 
also helps to mitigate this risk.  
Employers pay for their own salary awards 
and should be mindful of the geared effect 
on pension liabilities of any bias in 
pensionable pay rises towards longer-
serving employees.  

3 2 6 ► Financial 11/08/2017

F7 R Unexpected increase in employer’s contribution rate To stabilise changes in employer 
contribution rates over the long term

Head of Pension 
Fund 4 3 12

An explicit stabilisation mechanism has 
been agreed for eligible employers as part 
of the funding strategy.  Other measures 
are also in place to limit sudden increases 
in contributions.
Obtain information on financial strength of 
individual employers. Discuss with 
employers their ability to absorb rises in 
their level of contribution.
Where appropriate mitigate impact through 
deficit spreading and phasing in of 
contribution rises, with appropriate security 
from employers and further analysis by the 
Fund’s actuary.

2 3 6 ► Financial 11/08/2017

F8 R Orphaned employers give rise to added costs for the 
Fund

To ensure individual employers in the 
Fund are responsible for their own 
costs 

Head of Pension 
Fund 4 3 12

The Fund seeks a cessation debt (or 
security/guarantor) to minimise the risk of 
this happening in the future. At risk 
employers are identified and are engaged 
in discussions over remedial actions in 
advance of retirement of all active 
members. 
If it occurs, the Actuary calculates the 
added cost spread pro-rata among all 
employers 

2 3 6 ► Financial 11/08/2017

F9 R

The Financial Conduct Authority (FCA) is proposing 
that local authorities will be classified as "retail" 
rather than "per se professional" clients under the 
European Union's Markets in Financial Instruments 
Directive (MiFIDII).

If LGPS Funds are not classified as 
Professional Investors investment 
management costs are likely to 
increase.

Head of Pension 
Fund 4 3 12

Representative bodies such as the 
national Scheme Advisory Board (SAB) for 
the LGPS and the PLSA have responded 
to the FCA’s consultation on the 
implementation of MiFIDII, proposing that 
local authorities should be deemed 
professional clients, especially in the 
administration of the LGPS pension fund.

1 3 3 ► Financial

Confirmation has been received back 
from all of our Investment Managers 
that they have agreed to categorise the 
Gloucestershire LGPS as professional 
clients. Due to this the residual risk 
score has been reduced.

11/08/2017

F/D1 R Pensioners living longer, thus increasing cost to 
Fund.

The achievement of fully funded 
pension liabilities over the long term

Head of Pension 
Fund 5 2 10

Set mortality assumptions with some 
allowance for future increases in life 
expectancy.
The Fund Actuary has direct access to the 
experience of over 50 LGPS funds which 
allows early identification of changes in life 
expectancy that might in turn affect the 
assumptions underpinning the valuation.
The Fund also sets life expectancy 
assumptions using ClubVita, which is a 
specialised longevity company and 
provides life expectancy assumptions 
based on the profile of the Fund’s own 
membership.
Administering Authority encourage any 
employers concerned at costs to promote 
later retirement culture.  Each 1 year rise 
in the average age at retirement would 
save roughly 5% of pension costs.  

3 2 6 ► Financial 11/08/2017

P
age 14



Gloucestershire LGPS Pension Fund  Risk Register Version: 1d

L/V I/B R L/V I/B R

Inherent Risk 
or Opportunity

Ref O
pp

or
tu

ni
ty

/R
is

k

Risk or Opportunity Description

Benefits of taking opportunity or 
Consequences  if risk occurs and 
related objectives Owner Actions DueControls

Residual Risk 
or Opportunity

D
ire

ct
io

n 
of

 T
ra

ve
l 

Category of Risk or Opportunity

Period Comments - where changed 
since last considered by the Pension 
Committee in June 2017 are shown in 

bold italics.

All risks are 
monitored on an 
on-going basis. 

Date of last 
review. Further actions Owner

F/D2 R

Maturing Fund – i.e. proportion of actively 
contributing employees declines relative to retired 
employees leading to the possibility of there not 
being sufficient liquid funds available to pay liabilities 
as they fall due.

Efficient management of the Fund by 
the Administering Authority, ensuring 
it's responsibilities are met, while costs 
are minimised

Head of Pension 
Fund 4 3 12

Continue to monitor at each valuation, 
seeking monetary amounts rather than % 
of pay. Between valuations regularly 
monitor level of active members on both a 
total Fund basis and by individual 
employer. Regularly monitor how cash 
flow positive the Fund is. Regularly review 
investment strategy.

2 3 6 ► Financial

The Fund commissioned Hymans 
Robertson to undertake cash flow modelling 
based on the following three scenarios:
Scenario 1 – cash flows projections based 
on 2016 valuation membership data, 
Scenario 2 – cash flows projections based 
on 2016 valuation membership data, with a 
20% reduction in actives, Scenario 3  - with 
a 40% reduction in active members. This 
modelling indicated that the fund will remain 
cashflow positive until 2033 under 
scenario1, to 2026 under scenario 2 and 
would immediately become casflow 
negative under scenario 3. Given that 
active membership in the Gloucestershire 
scheme is still increasing slightly it is felt 
that scenario 1 is the most likely outcome 
for the fund.

11/08/2017

F/D3 R A company admitted to the Fund as an admission 
body may become financially unviable

Efficient management of the Fund by 
the Administering Authority, ensuring 
it's responsibilities are met, while costs 
are minimised

Head of Pension 
Fund 4 3 12

A transferee admission body will always 
have a funding guarantee from the 
transferring scheme employer. A 
community admission body will only be 
admitted to the Fund if they have a funding 
guarantee from a scheme employer with 
tax raising powers. A surety bond to cover 
the cost of paying pensions early if the 
company goes into liquidation is also 
generally required by the scheme 
employer to cover the potential risk of the 
admitted body becoming insolvent and the 
value of this surety or bond is reviewed 
regularly to ensure it provides adequate 
cover for the financial risks involved

3 3 9 ► Financial 11/08/2017

F/D4 R Deteriorating patterns of early retirements
To ensure individual employers in the 
Fund are responsible for their own 
costs 

Head of Pension 
Fund 4 3 12

Employers are charged the extra cost of 
non ill-health retirements following each 
individual decision.
Employer ill health retirement experience 
is monitored, and insurance is an option.

2 3 6 ► Financial 11/08/2017

F/D5 R Reductions in payroll causing insufficient deficit 
recovery payments

To ensure individual employers in the 
Fund are responsible for their own 
costs 

Head of Pension 
Fund 4 3 12

Require employers to pay sums due for 
deficit recovery contributions as a fixed 
monetary amount rather than being 
expressed as a % of pay.

2 3 6 ► Financial 11/08/2017

F/D6 R Ill-health retirements significantly more than 
anticipated

To ensure individual employers in the 
Fund are responsible for their own 
costs 

Head of Pension 
Fund 4 3 12

Monitoring of each employer’s ill-health 
experience on an ongoing basis. The 
employer may be charged additional 
contributions if this exceeds the ill-health 
assumption built in. Ill health insurance is 
available to be purchased by individual 
employers

2 3 6 ► Financial 11/08/2017

F/D7 R

Adverse effect on the Fund’s investment strategy 
and employer contributions if large numbers of 
active members are outsourced on a “closed” (to 
new entrants) basis

The achievement of fully funded 
pension liabilities over the long term

Head of Pension 
Fund 3 3 9

Take advice from the Fund actuary on the 
likely impact this will have on Fund 
investment out performance assumptions 
and employer contributions. Monitor levels 
of outsourcings on a “closed” basis and 
advise employers of implications so these 
are taken into account when they consider 
the business case for an outsourcing. 
Regularly review investment strategy and 
strategic asset allocation.

2 3 6 ► Financial
No significant impact to date, but the risk 
will continue to be monitored on a regular 
basis.

11/08/2017

F/D8 R
Transfers out of the Fund into DC schemes due to 
introduction of "Freedom & Choice" resulting in a 
change in funding level

The achievement of fully funded 
pension liabilities over the long term

Head of Pension 
Fund 3 3 9

Taken advice from the Fund actuary on 
the proportion of the Fund's active and 
deferred members aged 55 or over and 
the maximum exposure of the Fund to 
these transfers, split between active and 
deferred members. Considered impact on 
funding level given different possible levels 
of take up from active and deferred 
members.

2 2 4 ► Financial 11/08/2017

P
age 15



Gloucestershire LGPS Pension Fund  Risk Register Version: 1d

L/V I/B R L/V I/B R

Inherent Risk 
or Opportunity

Ref O
pp

or
tu

ni
ty

/R
is

k

Risk or Opportunity Description

Benefits of taking opportunity or 
Consequences  if risk occurs and 
related objectives Owner Actions DueControls

Residual Risk 
or Opportunity

D
ire

ct
io

n 
of

 T
ra

ve
l 

Category of Risk or Opportunity

Period Comments - where changed 
since last considered by the Pension 
Committee in June 2017 are shown in 

bold italics.

All risks are 
monitored on an 
on-going basis. 

Date of last 
review. Further actions Owner

A/R1 R

Significant additional costs resulting from changes to 
national pension requirements and/or HMRC rules 
e.g. changes arising from public sector pensions 
reform, and/or more complex regulations requiring 
increased administration resources.

Efficient management of the Fund by 
the Administering Authority, ensuring 
it's responsibilities are met, while costs 
are minimised

Head of Pension 
Fund 3 3 9

The Administering Authority considers all 
consultation papers issued by the 
Government and comments where 
appropriate. Considered different % take 
up scenarios for active and deferred 
members
The results of the most recent reforms 
have been built into the 2013 valuation.  
Any changes to member contribution rates 
or benefit levels will be carefully 
communicated with members to minimise 
possible opt-outs or adverse actions. 

2 3 6 ► Legislative & Regulatory

As reported to the last meetings of the 
Pension Board and Pension Committee, in 
order to effectively deal with the increased 
workload emanating from the new 2016 
CARE scheme, additional resopurces have 
now been invested in the Pension 
Administration Team.

11/08/2017

A/R2 R Failure to collect and account for contributions from 
employers and employees on time

Efficient management of the Fund by 
the Administering Authority, ensuring 
it's responsibilities are met, while costs 
are minimised

Head of Pension 
Fund 4 3 12

Regular monthly monitoring and 
reconciliation of Fund contributions 
received, including a detailed analysis of 
individual employer contributions and 
employee contributions by pay banding. 
Robust debt management processes are 
in place  to recover any late payments

2 3 6 ► Legislative & Regulatory 11/08/2017

A/R3 R Loss of funds through fraud or misappropriation

Efficient management of the Fund by 
the Administering Authority, ensuring 
it's responsibilities are met, while costs 
are minimised

Head of Pension 
Fund 4 3 12

Procedures and processes are in place 
and applied in relation to eg: checking for 
"ghost" scheme members;  multiple levels 
of authorisation for claims and fund 
payments plus secondary checking of 
lump sum payments. Procedures are 
documented and staff are trained and 
managed in carrying these out. The Fund's 
internal auditors carry out regular reviews.

2 3 6 ► Fraud

The funds internal auditors regularly review 
the adequacy of controls within the 
Pensions Section. These reviews make use 
of experienced Counter Fraud staff who are 
available to the internal auditors.

11/08/2017

A/R4 R

Does the fund have sufficient resources to provide 
sufficient input to the development of the Brunel 
Pension Partnership in the context of the importance 
of ensuring that the partnership operates in an 
efficient and effective manner.

To ensure the fund is proactive in the 
development of the proposals and the 
robust control environment required for 
the collective management of assets, 
to avoid a detrimental impact on the 
fund. 

Head of Pension 
Fund 4 4 16

Additional staffing resources may be 
required to facilitate dedicated staffing 
resources to take forward the pooling 
proposal. This may require additional 
contributions from participating funds.

2 3 6 ► Legislative & Regulatory

Now that the partnership has developed to 
the establishment of the new company, with 
senior appointments being made, limited 
senior officer resources can now be more 
directed at the important client side roles, 
including looking at the adequacy of control 
systems.

11/08/2017

G1 R

Administering Authority unaware of structural 
changes in an employer’s membership (e.g. large 
fall in employee members, large number of 
retirements) or not advised of an employer closing 
to new entrants

The achievement of fully funded 
pension liabilities over the long term

Head of Pension 
Fund 4 3 12

The Administering Authority has a close 
relationship with employing bodies and 
communicates required standards e.g. for 
submission of data. 
The Actuary may revise the rates and 
Adjustments certificate to increase an 
employer’s contributions (under Regulation 
38) between triennial valuations
Deficit contributions may be expressed as 
monetary amounts.

2 3 6 ► Governance 11/08/2017

G2 R Actuarial or investment advice is not sought, or is 
not heeded, or proves to be insufficient in some way

Efficient management of the Fund by 
the Administering Authority, ensuring 
it's responsibilities are met, while costs 
are minimised

Head of Pension 
Fund 4 3 12

The Administering Authority maintains 
close contact with its specialist advisers.
Advice is delivered via formal meetings 
involving Elected Members, and recorded 
appropriately.
Actuarial advice is subject to professional 
requirements such as peer review

2 3 6 ► Governance 11/08/2017

G3 R
Administering Authority failing to commission the 
Fund Actuary to carry out a termination valuation for 
a departing Admission Body.

Efficient management of the Fund by 
the Administering Authority, ensuring 
it's responsibilities are met, while costs 
are minimised

Head of Pension 
Fund 4 3 12

The Administering Authority requires 
employers with Best Value contractors  ( 
Transferee Admission Bodies) to inform it 
of forthcoming changes. The administering 
authority also monitors contract periods of 
Transferee Admission Bodies and 
regularly monitors levels of active 
employees across all employers but 
particularly for Community Admission 
Bodies. Where their active membership 
materially decreases further steps are 
taken.

2 3 6 ► Governance 11/08/2017

P
age 16



Gloucestershire LGPS Pension Fund  Risk Register Version: 1d

L/V I/B R L/V I/B R

Inherent Risk 
or Opportunity

Ref O
pp

or
tu

ni
ty

/R
is

k

Risk or Opportunity Description

Benefits of taking opportunity or 
Consequences  if risk occurs and 
related objectives Owner Actions DueControls

Residual Risk 
or Opportunity

D
ire

ct
io

n 
of

 T
ra

ve
l 

Category of Risk or Opportunity

Period Comments - where changed 
since last considered by the Pension 
Committee in June 2017 are shown in 

bold italics.

All risks are 
monitored on an 
on-going basis. 

Date of last 
review. Further actions Owner

G4 R An employer ceasing to exist with insufficient 
funding or adequacy of a bond.

Efficient management of the Fund by 
the Administering Authority, ensuring 
it's responsibilities are met, while costs 
are minimised

Head of Pension 
Fund 4 3 12

The Administering Authority believes that it 
would normally be too late to address the 
position if it was left to the time of 
departure.
The risk is mitigated by:
Seeking a funding guarantee from another 
scheme employer.
Alerting the prospective employer to its 
obligations and encouraging it to take 
independent actuarial advice. 
Vetting prospective employers before 
admission.
Where permitted under the regulations 
requiring a bond to protect the Fund from 
various risks.
Requiring new Community Admission 
Bodies to have a scheme employer with 
tax raising powers as guarantor.
Reviewing bond or guarantor 
arrangements at regular intervals.
Monitoring funding levels more closely as 
approaching cessation and reviewing 
contributions well ahead of cessation if 
thought appropriate 

3 3 9 ► Governance 11/08/2017

G5 R Failure to comply with the Myners’ Investment 
Principles

Efficient management of the Fund by 
the Administering Authority, ensuring 
it's responsibilities are met, while costs 
are minimised

Head of Pension 
Fund 4 3 12

Compliance as detailed in the Statement 
of Investment Principles is kept under 
regular review. 

2 3 6 ► Governance 11/08/2017

G6 R
Lack of relevant expertise, knowledge,skills and 
resources at officer and member level in relation to 
administering the LGPS

Efficient management of the Fund by 
the Administering Authority, ensuring 
it's responsibilities are met, while costs 
are minimised

Head of Pension 
Fund 4 3 12

Training needs assessments for the 
Administering Authority are carried out and 
an annual training plan produced. The 
Fund subscribes to the CIPFA Knowledge 
and Skills Framework for the LGPS and 
makes this information available to all 
members of the Pension Committee and 
relevant officers. Appropriately qualified 
external advisers and consultants are 
used as appropriate.

3 3 9 ▲ Governance

As reported to the last meetings of the 
Pension Board and Pension Committee, in 
order to effectively deal with the increased 
workload emanating from the new 2016 
CARE scheme, additional resopurces have 
now been invested in the Pension 
Administration Team. However, due to 
training needs of new appointees 
performance against administration targets 
will take time to improve.

11/08/2017

G7 R Failure to internally hold personal data securely and 
keep pension records up-to-date and accurate

Efficient management of the Fund by 
the Administering Authority, ensuring 
it's responsibilities are met, while costs 
are minimised

Head of Pension 
Fund 4 4 16

Personal data and scanned documents 
relating to scheme members are 
maintained in an online system with logical 
access controls via individual password 
access for those that need to maintain and 
access this information. Procedures for 
maintaining pension records are 
documented and the process is monitored 
and managed within the Pensions 
Administration team. Procedures are 
regularly reviewed by the Fund's internal 
auditors. Physical access controls are also 
in operation within the Pension Fund 
office. 

1 4 4 ► Governance 11/08/2017

G8 R

Loss of experience on the Pension Fund Committee 
or Pension Board, and/or the lack of adequate 
training, resulting in a negative impact on 
governance arrangements within the 
Gloucestershire LGPS.

Efficient management of the Fund by 
the Administering Authority, ensuring 
it's responsibilities are met, while costs 
are minimised

Head of Pension 
Fund 3 4 12

Training is provided on an on-going basis 
to Committee and Board Members both at 
formal meetings of the Committee/Board 
and at internal and external training 
sessions.

1 4 4

G9 R

Transition from the current custodian to State Street 
Bank under the Brunel Pension Partnership resulting 
in failings during the transition and/or inadequate 
performance reports post transition and/or negative 
impacts on the final accounts of the Pension Fund 
due to failings in the accounting reports received 
from State Street Bank

Efficient management of the Fund by 
the Administering Authority, ensuring 
it's responsibilities are met, while costs 
are minimised

Head of Pension 
Fund 3 4 12

Detailed control procedures implemented 
during the transition with supoort from a 
transition manager working for the Brunel 
Pension Partnership

3 3 9

No major problems were encoutered 
during the transition and assets 
transferred were reconciled back to the 
detailed records held by each manager. 
At the time of the update of the risk 
register the adequacy of the 
performance report and accounting 
reports is not known hence this remains 
a medium risk 

P
age 17



Gloucestershire LGPS Pension Fund  Risk Register Version: 1d

L/V I/B R L/V I/B R

Inherent Risk 
or Opportunity

Ref O
pp

or
tu

ni
ty

/R
is

k

Risk or Opportunity Description

Benefits of taking opportunity or 
Consequences  if risk occurs and 
related objectives Owner Actions DueControls

Residual Risk 
or Opportunity

D
ire

ct
io

n 
of

 T
ra

ve
l 

Category of Risk or Opportunity

Period Comments - where changed 
since last considered by the Pension 
Committee in June 2017 are shown in 

bold italics.

All risks are 
monitored on an 
on-going basis. 

Date of last 
review. Further actions Owner

G10 R

Failure to comply with the General Data Protection 
Regulation resulting in breaches which have to be 
reported to the Pension Regulator and the 
Information Commissioners Office resulting in 
compliants from scheme members and/or significant 
financial fines. 

Efficient management of the Fund by 
the Administering Authority, ensuring 
it's responsibilities are met, while costs 
are minimised

Head of Pension 
Fund 5 4 20

Detailed guidance and support is being 
obtained from the GCC Information 
Management Team which will include the 
production of an action plan to detail and 
monitor actions required to ensure 
compliance within the Gloucestershire 
LGPS.

3 4 12

Detailed guidance and support is being 
obtained from the GCC Information 
Management Team which will include 
the production of an action plan to 
detail and monitor actions required to 
ensure compliance within the 
Gloucestershire LGPS. 

G11 R

Failure to protect the Pension Fund's key 
information and data as a result of exploited 
technological vulnerabilities facilitated through 
malicious attack, primarily from external sources.

Efficient management of the Fund by 
the Administering Authority, ensuring 
it's responsibilities are met, while costs 
are minimised

Head of Pension 
Fund 5 4 20

Anti-malware and internet security 
software. Patch management policies and 
procedures. Compliance with PSN. 
Internal and External ICT security 
testing.Manging user privileges.

3 3 9 ► Governance 11/08/2017

P
age 18



Pension Committee
9th February 2018

Quarterly Performance Report

Report of the Strategic Finance Director

The attached performance report to 31st December 2017 is the first report 
produced for the Gloucestershire Fund by State Street Bank in their capacity 
as the custodian/administrator of the Brunel Pension Partnership.

The format of the report is different to the performance reports provided by 
BNYM, as our previous custodian, but all of the key information previously 
provided continues to be, albeit in hopefully a more user friendly format. 
Additional information is also provided, primarily related the risks and returns 
delivered for the Funds portfolio’s compared with their benchmarks.

In terms of the content of the report, the following key information is provided:

 Page 1 – Investment overview for the quarter.

 Pages 2 and 3 provide a breakdown of the mandates, giving details of 
benchmarks and performance targets, and the opening and closing 
values for each mandate.

 Page 4 provides a graphical presentation of the overall performance of 
the fund compared with benchmarks over different time periods.

 Pages 5 and 6 provide performance figures for each mandate. As 
shown on page 2 of the report some of the mandates have the 
benchmark as their performance target, whilst other active mandates 
have a performance target plus a set percentage of target out 
performance. Performance is monitored against performance targets 
throughout the report, hence:

o Aberdeen Standard Active UK Equities : Benchmark +2% net
o Blackrock Active Global Equities : Benchmark +1-2% gross
o WAMCO Active Global Fixed Interest: Benchmark + 1% net
o Hermes Property: Benchmark +0.5% net
o CBRE Property: Benchmark +0.5% net
o All other mandates: Benchmark

 Pages 7 and 8 provides manager attribution information comparing the 
actual fund weight with the strategic asset allocation weight and Asset 
Class attribution.

 Pages 9 and 10 provide an analysis of risk and return. On page 9 the 
actual annualised return over 3 years and the benchmark annualised 
return for each mandate is plotted against the vertical axis, whilst the 
perceived risk, based on standard deviation, is plotted against the 
horizontal axis. Ideally Funds are looking for actual performance to be 
lower risk and/or higher performance than benchmark.

Page 19

Agenda Item 7



 Pages 11 to 21 then provide detailed analysis on a manager by 
manager basis.

Recommendation

That the Committee notes and comments on the performance report for the 
quarter ending 31st December 2017.

Contact Officer

Mark Spilsbury – Head of Pensions (01452 328920)

Page 20



Gloucestershire County Council
Pension Fund

Performance Report to December 31, 2017

P
age 21



Market Overview
Market Commentary 1

Client Information
Client Information 2
Manager Allocation 3

Total Client
Client Overview 4
Performance Summary 5-6
Manager Attribution 7-8
Ex Post Risk 9-10

Manager Analysis
Manager Analysis 11-21

Disclaimer Page 22

Gloucestershire County Council Pension Fund
Report to December 31, 2017

Table of Contents

State Street Global Services Performance Services

P
age 22



Market Commentary

Quarter Ended December 2017 

From both an economic and financial perspective, 2017 finished on a relatively high note.  Solid economic data enabled some of the major central 

banks to tighten monetary policy and taper asset purchases.  There were issues to overcome, notably an uncertain outcome to the German federal 

elections, ongoing tensions between Spain and Catalonia and continuing Brexit negotiations (which culminated in a breakthrough in December when 

the UK and EU agreed a deal to move forward). However, markets shrugged off these concerns and, in general, risk assets pushed higher, with 

agreement on tax reform in the US adding to momentum in that region. 

As measured by the MSCI AC World Index, global equities returned 4.9%, while the MSCI Emerging Markets Index posted an even stronger return of 

6.6%. 

A breakthrough on the difficult Brexit negotiations in early December was seen as an important development and UK equity markets posted healthy 

gains in the immediate aftermath. The economy has continued to make steady, if unremarkable, progress with GDP growth of 0.4% for the third 

quarter.  However, with headline inflation of 3.1% in November and average weekly earnings growing at an annual rate of 2.5%, consumers are going to 

continue to face real income pressures that are expected to weigh on the economy. 

Data out of the US was generally strong, tax reform boosted markets and oil prices pushed higher, with the S&P 500 Index posting positive gains for the 

quarter on the back of continued strong corporate profitability. Sector leadership came from consumer discretionary, IT and financials; defensive 

sectors such as utilities, health care and real estate were the poorest performers.  

European markets, on the other hand lagged behind as political tensions weighed on the region despite Eurozone economic data continuing its positive 

trend, with GDP growing by 0.6% in Q3 for annual year-on-year growth of 2.6%. Eurozone stock markets generally had a poor quarter on the back of 

the uncertain outcome of the German elections and political tensions between Spain and Catalonia.   

Longer dated government bond yields entered a period of consolidation in Q4 as the Fed, Bank of England and ECB raised rates or announced the 

tapering of asset purchases.  The UK Government Bond >5 years index returning 2.8%.  Global Bond market performance was flat for a UK investor, the 

Index Linked Gilts >5 year issues returned 3.9%. 

The euro’s strong performance in 2017 continued in Q4 as it gained 0.7% against the pound. Sterling however gained 0.9% versus the JPY and 0.8% 

against the USD over Q4 2017; representing gains of 5.4% and 8.7% respectively over the year.    

Rising interest rates in the US and UK fed through into higher money market rates; three-month USD LIBOR rose to 1.7% from 1.3%, while three-month 

GBP LIBOR rose to 0.5% from 0.3%.   

Property had another steady quarter returning over 3%. 

Gloucestershire County Council Pension Fund
Report to December 31, 2017

Market Overview

Page 1 of 22
State Street Global Services Performance Services

P
age 23



Manager Allocation

Aberdeen Standard Investments

Aberdeen Standard GARS

Blackrock Emerging Markets

Blackrock Global Equity

Blackrock Aquila Life

WAMCO

WAMCO GMS

Hermes

CBREI

Golub

Bluebay

Yorkshire Fund Managers

Cash

Cash 0.2%

Yorkshire 
Fund 

Managers 
0.2%

Bluebay 
0.3%

Golub 0.5%

CBREI 2.3%

Hermes 
5.7%

WAMCO 
GMS 8.1%

WAMCO 
13.6%

Blackrock 
Aquila Life 

13.4%

Aberdeen 
Standard 

Investments 
18.4%

Aberdeen 
Standard 

GARS 3.5%

Blackrock 
Emerging 
Markets 

6.4%

Blackrock 
Global 
Equity 
27.3%

Manager Allocation

Aberdeen Standard Investments

Aberdeen Standard GARS

Blackrock Emerging Markets

Blackrock Global Equity

Blackrock Aquila Life

WAMCO

WAMCO GMS

Hermes

CBREI

Golub

Bluebay

Yorkshire Fund Managers

Cash

Cash 0.2%

Yorkshire 
Fund 

Managers 
0.2%

Bluebay 
0.3%

Golub 0.5%

CBREI 2.3%

Hermes 
5.7%

WAMCO 
GMS 8.1%

WAMCO 
13.6%

Blackrock 
Aquila Life 

13.4%

Aberdeen 
Standard 

Investments 
18.4%

Aberdeen 
Standard 

GARS 3.5%

Blackrock 
Emerging 
Markets 

6.4%

Blackrock 
Global 
Equity 
27.3%

Fund Structure By Mandate

Manager Mandate Performance Target Benchmark Indices

Aberdeen Standard UK Equity B/M +2% net FTSE All Share 2% Capped

Aberdeen Standard - GARS Global Absolute Return Strategies Benchmark 6M GBP LIBOR +5%

Blackrock EM Emerging Markets - Passive Benchmark MSCI Emerging Markets

Blackrock Global Global Equities B/M +1-2% gross MSCI ACWI

Blackrock Aquila Life Global Equities Benchmark Composite*

WAMCO Global Fixed Interest B/M +1% net Composite**

WAMCO GMS Global Multi Strategy FI Benchmark 3M GBP LIBOR +2%

Hermes Property B/M +0.5% net IPD UK  PPF Bal PUT

CBREI - GMM Property B/M +0.5% net IPD All Bal Property Fund

Golub Private Debt Benchmark 3M GBP LIBOR +5%

Blue Bay Private Debt Benchmark 3M GBP LIBOR +5%

Yorkshire Fund Manager/TVP Venture Capital n/a n/a

Weighting Blackrock Aquila Life - Global Equities Composite Benchmark*

Fund % MSCI World Index Net Total Return GBP

Fund % MSCI World Net TR 95% Hedged to GBP

Weighting WAMCO - Global Fixed Interest Composite Benchmark**

25% FTSE A Gilts Over 5 Years Index (Gross)

50% ICE BoAML Sterling Non Gilts Index (Gross)

25% FTSE A Index Linked Gilts Over 5 Years (Gross)

Gloucestershire County Council Pension Fund
Report to December 31, 2017

Client Information

Page 2 of 22
State Street Global Services Performance Services

P
age 24



Market Values
Beginning Market Value at

Quarter Ending Sep 30 2017
Ending Market Value as at

Quarter Ending Dec 31 2017 Actual Weight

Gloucestershire County Council 2,165,559,331 2,284,083,087 100.00%

Aberdeen Standard Investments 403,855,725 421,230,066 18.44%

Aberdeen Standard GARS 77,678,864 79,247,328 3.47%

Blackrock Emerging Markets 137,212,664 146,604,620 6.42%

Blackrock Global Equity 587,012,842 624,562,599 27.34%

Blackrock Aquila Life 359,853,559 305,314,523 13.37%

WAMCO 302,483,677 310,864,022 13.61%

WAMCO GMS 127,223,006 184,778,476 8.09%

Hermes 103,639,881 130,796,010 5.73%

CBREI 45,736,253 53,448,010 2.34%

Golub 11,180,263 11,088,525 0.49%

Bluebay 4,029,796 6,109,914 0.27%

Yorkshire Fund Managers               - 5,249,209 0.23%

Cash            - 4,751,478 0.21%

Blackrock Cash          - 38,307 0.00%

Market Values - Blackrock Aquila Life
Ending Market Value as at

Quarter Ending Dec 31 2017 Actual Weight

Blackrock Aquila Unhedged 112,224,555 4.91%

Blackrock Aquila Hedged 193,089,968 8.45%

Gloucestershire County Council Pension Fund
Report to December 31, 2017

Market Value by Manager

Page 3 of 22
State Street Global Services Performance Services

P
age 25



Fund Performance

Gloucestershire County Council Gloucestershire Strategic Benchmark

3 Month Fiscal YTD 1 Year 3 Year 5 Year 10 Year Since Inception

-10.0

0.0

10.0

20.0

30.0

R
et

ur
n 

(%
)

Fund Performance

Gloucestershire County Council Gloucestershire Strategic Benchmark

3 Month Fiscal YTD 1 Year 3 Year 5 Year 10 Year Since Inception

-10.0

0.0

10.0

20.0

30.0

R
et

ur
n 

(%
)

3 Month
(%)

Fiscal YTD
(%)

1 Year
(%)

3 Year
(% p.a.)

5 Year
(% p.a.)

10 Year
(% p.a.)

Since Inception
(% p.a.)

Gloucestershire County Council 4.4 8.2 13.3 11.1 12.0 7.7 8.4

Gloucestershire Strategic Benchmark 3.8 5.6 10.1 10.9 11.3 7.6 8.6

Excess 0.6 2.6 3.2 0.3 0.7 0.1 -0.1

Gloucestershire County Council Pension Fund
Report to December 31, 2017

Client Overview

Page 4 of 22
State Street Global Services Performance Services

P
age 26



Performance Results versus Target Benchmark
Ending

Market Value
(Million)

Weight
(%)

3 Month
(%)

Fiscal YTD
(%)

1 Year
(%)

3 Year
(% p.a.)

5 Year
(% p.a.)

10 Year
(% p.a.)

Since Inception
(% p.a.) Inception Date

Gloucestershire County Council 2,284.1 100.0% 4.4 8.2 13.3 11.1 12.0 7.7 8.4 Apr-05

Gloucestershire Strategic Benchmark - - 3.8 5.6 10.1 10.9 11.3 7.6 8.6 Apr-05

Excess - - 0.6 2.6 3.2 0.3 0.7 0.1 -0.1 -

Aberdeen Standard Investments 421.2 18.4% 4.3 8.3 14.0 8.2 9.6 5.8 7.4 Mar-05

Aberdeen Standard Target Benchmark - - 4.8 9.4 15.1 11.5 12.0 8.2 9.9 Mar-05

Excess - - -0.5 -1.0 -1.0 -3.4 -2.4 -2.4 -2.5 -

Aberdeen Standard GARS 79.2 3.5% 2.0 3.8 3.8 2.4 4.5 - 4.6 Nov-12

Aberdeen Standard GARS Benchmark - - 1.3 4.1 5.5 5.6 5.6 - 5.6 Nov-12

Excess - - 0.7 -0.3 -1.7 -3.2 -1.1 - -1.0 -

Blackrock Emerging Markets 146.6 6.4% 6.8 14.2 25.1 14.8 8.7 - 9.4 Jan-12

Blackrock EM Benchmark - - 6.6 13.9 25.4 14.4 8.2 - 9.0 Jan-12

Excess - - 0.3 0.4 -0.3 0.4 0.4 - 0.4 -

Blackrock Global Equity 624.6 27.3% 6.4 11.4 19.0 16.0 17.6 10.1 11.1 Apr-05

Blackrock Global Equity Target Benchmark - - 5.2 8.4 14.9 16.3 16.7 10.3 11.6 Apr-05

Excess - - 1.2 3.1 4.1 -0.3 0.9 -0.2 -0.6 -

Blackrock Aquila Life 305.3 13.4% 5.3 9.7 - - - - 14.6 Feb-17

Blackrock Aquila Life Benchmark - - 4.4 6.1 - - - - 10.9 Feb-17

Excess - - 0.9 3.5 - - - - 3.7 -

WAMCO 310.9 13.6% 2.8 2.2 4.4 6.9 7.4 7.6 6.9 Apr-05

WAMCO Target Benchmark - - 2.9 1.8 4.1 7.5 8.0 8.6 8.1 Apr-05

Excess - - -0.0 0.5 0.3 -0.6 -0.6 -1.0 -1.2 -

Gloucestershire County Council Pension Fund
Report to December 31, 2017

Summary of Performance

Page 5 of 22
State Street Global Services Performance Services

P
age 27



Performance Results versus Target Benchmark
Ending

Market Value
(Million)

Weight
(%)

3 Month
(%)

Fiscal YTD
(%)

1 Year
(%)

3 Year
(% p.a.)

5 Year
(% p.a.)

10 Year
(% p.a.)

Since Inception
(% p.a.) Inception Date

WAMCO GMS 184.8 8.1% -0.2 3.7 7.0 5.2 3.6 - 4.7 Sep-11

WAMCO GMS Benchmark - - 0.6 1.7 2.3 2.5 2.5 - 2.6 Sep-11

Excess - - -0.8 2.0 4.7 2.7 1.1 - 2.1 -

Hermes 130.8 5.7% 3.5 9.2 11.3 10.8 12.8 6.0 7.1 Apr-05

Hermes Target Benchmark - - 3.4 8.7 11.1 9.5 11.2 4.1 5.6 Apr-05

Excess - - 0.1 0.5 0.1 1.3 1.6 1.8 1.5 -

CBREI 53.4 2.3% 1.7 5.6 6.3 8.1 10.1 - 9.6 Jun-11

CBREI Target Benchmark - - 3.4 8.8 11.2 9.8 11.2 - 9.4 Jun-11

Excess - - -1.7 -3.2 -4.9 -1.7 -1.1 - 0.3 -

Golub 11.1 0.5% 3.4 - - - - - -0.3 Jul-17

Golub Benchmark - - 1.3 - - - - - 2.6 Jul-17

Excess - - 2.1 - - - - - -2.9 -

Bluebay 6.1 0.3% 1.1 - - - - - 3.0 Aug-17

Bluebay Benchmark - - 1.3 - - - - - 2.2 Aug-17

Excess - - -0.2 - - - - - 0.8 -

Yorkshire Fund Managers 5.2 0.2% - - - - - - - Oct-17

Cash 4.8 0.2% - - - - - - - Oct-17

Gloucestershire County Council Pension Fund
Report to December 31, 2017

Summary of Performance

Page 6 of 22
State Street Global Services Performance Services

P
age 28



Quarter Ending 31 December 2017
Weighting

Actual % Allocation at End of
Quarter Strategic Asset Allocation % % Difference

Gloucestershire County Council 100.00 100.00 0.00

Aberdeen Standard Investments 18.44 18.50 -0.06

Blackrock Emerging Markets 6.42 4.00 2.42

Blackrock Global Equity 27.34 22.50 4.84

Blackrock Aquila Life 13.36 15.50 -2.14

WAMCO 13.63 19.50 -5.87

WAMCO GMS 8.09 4.00 4.09

Hermes 5.73 6.00 -0.27

CBREI 2.34 2.50 -0.16

Aberdeen Standard GARS 3.47 4.00 -0.53

Golub 0.49 1.90 -1.41

Bluebay 0.27 1.60 -1.33

Client 0.44 0.00 0.44

Fund Weight Target Weight

Aberdeen 
Standard 

Investments

Blackrock 
Emerging 
Markets

Blackrock 
Global Equity

Blackrock 
Aquila Life

WAMCO WAMCO 
GMS

Hermes CBREI Aberdeen 
Standard 

GARS

Golub Bluebay Client
0.00

5.00

10.00

15.00

20.00

25.00

30.00

Fund Weight Target Weight

Aberdeen 
Standard 

Investments

Blackrock 
Emerging 
Markets

Blackrock 
Global Equity

Blackrock 
Aquila Life

WAMCO WAMCO 
GMS

Hermes CBREI Aberdeen 
Standard 

GARS

Golub Bluebay Client
0.00

5.00

10.00

15.00

20.00

25.00

30.00

Gloucestershire County Council Pension Fund
Report to December 31, 2017

Manager Attribution

Page 7 of 22
State Street Global Services Performance Services

P
age 29



Fund Weight Target Weight

Equities Fixed Interest Property Other
0.00

15.00

30.00

45.00

60.00

75.00

Fund Weight Target Weight

Equities Fixed Interest Property Other
0.00

15.00

30.00

45.00

60.00

75.00

Quarter Ending 31 December 2017
Market Value at End of Quarter

(£000)
Actual % Allocation at End of

Quarter Strategic Asset Allocation % % Difference

Gloucestershire County Council 2,284,784 100.00 100.00 0.00

Equities 1,497,750 65.55 60.50 5.05

Aberdeen Standard Investments 421,230 18.44 18.50 -0.06

Blackrock Emerging Markets 146,605 6.42 4.00 2.42

Blackrock Global Equity 624,563 27.34 22.50 4.84

Blackrock Aquila Life 305,315 13.36 15.50 -2.14

Blackrock Cash 38 0.00 0.00 0.00

Fixed Interest 496,249 21.72 23.50 -1.78

WAMCO 311,480 13.63 19.50 -5.87

WAMCO GMS 184,778 8.09 4.00 4.09

Property 184,338 8.07 8.50 -0.43

Hermes 130,796 5.73 6.00 -0.27

CBREI 53,448 2.34 2.50 -0.16

Other 106,446 4.66 7.50 -2.84

Aberdeen Standard GARS 79,247 3.47 4.00 -0.53

Golub 11,089 0.49 1.90 -1.41

Bluebay 6,110 0.27 1.60 -1.33

Yorkshire Fund Managers 5,249 0.23 0.00 0.23

Cash 4,751 0.21 0.00 0.21

Gloucestershire County Council Pension Fund
Report to December 31, 2017

Manager Attribution

Page 8 of 22
State Street Global Services Performance Services

P
age 30



Risk v Return - over 3 years

Gloucestershire County Council Gloucestershire Strategic Benchmark Aberdeen Standard Investments Aberdeen Standard Target Benchmark Aberdeen Standard GARS Aberdeen Standard GARS Benchmark

Blackrock Emerging Markets Blackrock EM Benchmark Blackrock Global Equity Blackrock Global Equity Target Benchmark WAMCO WAMCO Target Benchmark WAMCO GMS WAMCO GMS Benchmark

Hermes Hermes Target Benchmark CBREI CBREI Target Benchmark

0.00 4.00 8.00 12.00 16.00 20.00 24.00

Risk (Standard Deviation)

0.00

4.00

8.00

12.00

16.00

20.00

24.00

A
nn

ua
liz

ed
  R

et
ur

n
Gloucestershire County Council Pension Fund
Report to December 31, 2017

Ex Post Risk

Page 9 of 22
State Street Global Services Performance Services

P
age 31



Risk Statistics by Manager - over 3 years
Annualized

Return
Standard
Deviation

Benchmark
Return

Benchmark
Standard Deviation

Gloucestershire County Council 11.1 6.6 10.9 7.1

Aberdeen Standard Investments 8.2 9.7 11.5 9.0

Aberdeen Standard GARS 2.4 4.0 5.6 0.0

Blackrock Emerging Markets 14.8 15.7 14.4 15.9

Blackrock Global Equity 16.0 9.8 16.3 9.8

Blackrock Aquila Life

WAMCO 6.9 8.7 7.5 9.2

WAMCO GMS 5.2 5.1 2.5 0.0

Hermes 10.8 2.3 9.5 2.1

CBREI 8.1 1.9 9.8 2.0

Golub

Bluebay

Yorkshire Fund Managers

Cash

Blackrock Cash

Gloucestershire County Council Pension Fund
Report to December 31, 2017

Ex Post Risk

Page 10 of 22
State Street Global Services Performance Services

P
age 32



Performance

Aberdeen Standard Investments Aberdeen Standard Target Benchmark

3 Month Fiscal YTD 1 Year 3 Year 5 Year 10 Year Since Inception

0.0

10.0

20.0

R
et

ur
n 

(%
)

Performance

Aberdeen Standard Investments Aberdeen Standard Target Benchmark

3 Month Fiscal YTD 1 Year 3 Year 5 Year 10 Year Since Inception

0.0

10.0

20.0

R
et

ur
n 

(%
)

Market Values
Aberdeen Standard Investments

Market Value at Start of Quarter 403,855,725

Market Value at End of Quarter 421,230,066

% of Total Fund 18.4

3 Month
(%)

Fiscal YTD
(%)

1 Year
(%)

3 Year
(% p.a.)

5 Year
(% p.a.)

10 Year
(% p.a.)

Since
Inception
(% p.a.)

Aberdeen Standard Investments 4.3 8.3 14.0 8.2 9.6 5.8 7.4

Aberdeen Standard Target Benchmark 4.8 9.4 15.1 11.5 12.0 8.2 9.9

Excess -0.5 -1.0 -1.0 -3.4 -2.4 -2.4 -2.5

3 Year Risk
Aberdeen Standard Investments

Portfolio Return 8.2

Portfolio Std Dev 9.7

Benchmark Return 11.5

Benchmark Std Dev 9.0

Tracking Error 4.3

Information Ratio -0.8

Manager Information

      Manager - Aberdeen Standard Investments

      Mandate - UK Equity - Active

      Target - B/M +2% net

      Inception Date - March 2005

Gloucestershire County Council Pension Fund
Report to December 31, 2017

Aberdeen Standard Investments - UK Equity

Page 11 of 22
State Street Global Services Performance Services

P
age 33



Performance

Aberdeen Standard GARS Aberdeen Standard GARS Benchmark

3 Month Fiscal YTD 1 Year 3 Year 5 Year 10 Year Since Inception

0.0

10.0

R
et

ur
n 

(%
)

Performance

Aberdeen Standard GARS Aberdeen Standard GARS Benchmark

3 Month Fiscal YTD 1 Year 3 Year 5 Year 10 Year Since Inception

0.0

10.0

R
et

ur
n 

(%
)

Market Values
Aberdeen Standard GARS

Market Value at Start of Quarter 77,678,864

Market Value at End of Quarter 79,247,328

% of Total Fund 3.5

Manager Information

      Manager - Aberdeen Standard Investments

      Mandate - Global Absolute Return Strategies

      Target - Benchmark

      Inception Date - November 2012

3 Month
(%)

Fiscal YTD
(%)

1 Year
(%)

3 Year
(% p.a.)

5 Year
(% p.a.)

10 Year
(% p.a.)

Since
Inception
(% p.a.)

Aberdeen Standard GARS 2.0 3.8 3.8 2.4 4.5 - 4.6

Aberdeen Standard GARS Benchmark 1.3 4.1 5.5 5.6 5.6 - 5.6

Excess 0.7 -0.3 -1.7 -3.2 -1.1 - -1.0

3 Year Risk
Aberdeen Standard GARS

Portfolio Return 2.4

Portfolio Std Dev 4.0

Benchmark Return 5.6

Benchmark Std Dev 0.0

Tracking Error 4.0

Information Ratio -0.8

Gloucestershire County Council Pension Fund
Report to December 31, 2017

Aberdeen Standard - GARS

Page 12 of 22
State Street Global Services Performance Services

P
age 34



Manager Information

      Manager - Blackrock

      Mandate - Emerging Markets - Passive

      Target - Benchmark

      Inception Date - January 2012

Performance

Blackrock Emerging Markets Blackrock EM Benchmark

3 Month Fiscal YTD 1 Year 3 Year 5 Year 10 Year Since Inception

0.0

10.0

20.0

30.0

R
et

ur
n 

(%
)

Performance

Blackrock Emerging Markets Blackrock EM Benchmark

3 Month Fiscal YTD 1 Year 3 Year 5 Year 10 Year Since Inception

0.0

10.0

20.0

30.0

R
et

ur
n 

(%
)

Market Values
Blackrock Emerging Markets

Market Value at Start of Quarter 137,212,664

Market Value at End of Quarter 146,604,620

% of Total Fund 6.4

3 Month
(%)

Fiscal YTD
(%)

1 Year
(%)

3 Year
(% p.a.)

5 Year
(% p.a.)

10 Year
(% p.a.)

Since
Inception
(% p.a.)

Blackrock Emerging Markets 6.8 14.2 25.1 14.8 8.7 - 9.4

Blackrock EM Benchmark 6.6 13.9 25.4 14.4 8.2 - 9.0

Excess 0.3 0.4 -0.3 0.4 0.4 - 0.4

3 Year Risk
Blackrock Emerging Markets

Portfolio Return 14.8

Portfolio Std Dev 15.7

Benchmark Return 14.4

Benchmark Std Dev 15.9

Tracking Error 1.3

Information Ratio 0.3

Gloucestershire County Council Pension Fund
Report to December 31, 2017

Blackrock - Emerging Markets

Page 13 of 22
State Street Global Services Performance Services

P
age 35



Manager Information

      Manager - Blackrock

      Mandate - Global Equities

      Target - B/M +1-2% gross

      Inception Date - April 2005

Performance

Blackrock Global Equity Blackrock Global Equity Target Benchmark

3 Month Fiscal YTD 1 Year 3 Year 5 Year 10 Year Since Inception

0.0

10.0

20.0

R
et

ur
n 

(%
)

Performance

Blackrock Global Equity Blackrock Global Equity Target Benchmark

3 Month Fiscal YTD 1 Year 3 Year 5 Year 10 Year Since Inception

0.0

10.0

20.0

R
et

ur
n 

(%
)

Market Values
Blackrock Global Equity

Market Value at Start of Quarter 587,012,842

Market Value at End of Quarter 624,562,599

% of Total Fund 27.3

3 Month
(%)

Fiscal YTD
(%)

1 Year
(%)

3 Year
(% p.a.)

5 Year
(% p.a.)

10 Year
(% p.a.)

Since
Inception
(% p.a.)

Blackrock Global Equity 6.4 11.4 19.0 16.0 17.6 10.1 11.1

Blackrock Global Equity Target Benchmark 5.2 8.4 14.9 16.3 16.7 10.3 11.6

Excess 1.2 3.1 4.1 -0.3 0.9 -0.2 -0.6

3 Year Risk
Blackrock Global Equity

Portfolio Return 16.0

Portfolio Std Dev 9.8

Benchmark Return 16.3

Benchmark Std Dev 9.8

Tracking Error 1.7

Information Ratio -0.2

Gloucestershire County Council Pension Fund
Report to December 31, 2017

Blackrock - Global

Page 14 of 22
State Street Global Services Performance Services

P
age 36



Manager Information

      Manager - Blackrock Aquila Life

      Mandate - Global Equities - Passive

      Target - Benchmark

      Inception Date - February 2017

Performance

Blackrock Aquila Life Blackrock Aquila Life Benchmark

3 Month Fiscal YTD 1 Year 3 Year 5 Year 10 Year Since Inception

0.0

10.0

20.0

R
et

ur
n 

(%
)

Performance

Blackrock Aquila Life Blackrock Aquila Life Benchmark

3 Month Fiscal YTD 1 Year 3 Year 5 Year 10 Year Since Inception

0.0

10.0

20.0

R
et

ur
n 

(%
)

Market Values
Blackrock Aquila Life

Market Value at Start of Quarter 359,853,559

Market Value at End of Quarter 305,314,523

% of Total Fund 13.4

3 Month
(%)

Fiscal YTD
(%)

1 Year
(%)

3 Year
(% p.a.)

5 Year
(% p.a.)

10 Year
(% p.a.)

Since
Inception
(% p.a.)

Blackrock Aquila Life 5.3 9.7 - - - - 14.6

Blackrock Aquila Life Benchmark 4.4 6.1 - - - - 10.9

Excess 0.9 3.5 - - - - 3.7

3 Year Risk
Blackrock Aquila Life

Portfolio Return -

Portfolio Std Dev -

Benchmark Return -

Benchmark Std Dev -

Tracking Error -

Information Ratio -

Gloucestershire County Council Pension Fund
Report to December 31, 2017

Blackrock - Aquila Life

Page 15 of 22
State Street Global Services Performance Services

P
age 37



Manager Information

      Manager - Western Asset Management

      Mandate - Global Fixed Interest

      Target - B/M +1% net

      Inception Date - April 2005

Performance

WAMCO WAMCO Target Benchmark

3 Month Fiscal YTD 1 Year 3 Year 5 Year 10 Year Since Inception

0.0

10.0

R
et

ur
n 

(%
)

Performance

WAMCO WAMCO Target Benchmark

3 Month Fiscal YTD 1 Year 3 Year 5 Year 10 Year Since Inception

0.0

10.0

R
et

ur
n 

(%
)

Market Values
WAMCO

Market Value at Start of Quarter 302,483,677

Market Value at End of Quarter 310,864,022

% of Total Fund 13.6

3 Month
(%)

Fiscal YTD
(%)

1 Year
(%)

3 Year
(% p.a.)

5 Year
(% p.a.)

10 Year
(% p.a.)

Since
Inception
(% p.a.)

WAMCO 2.8 2.2 4.4 6.9 7.4 7.6 6.9

WAMCO Target Benchmark 2.9 1.8 4.1 7.5 8.0 8.6 8.1

Excess -0.0 0.5 0.3 -0.6 -0.6 -1.0 -1.2

3 Year Risk
WAMCO

Portfolio Return 6.9

Portfolio Std Dev 8.7

Benchmark Return 7.5

Benchmark Std Dev 9.2

Tracking Error 1.2

Information Ratio -0.5

Gloucestershire County Council Pension Fund
Report to December 31, 2017

Western Asset Management

Page 16 of 22
State Street Global Services Performance Services

P
age 38



Manager Information

      Manager - Western Asset Management

      Mandate - Global Multi Strategy FI

      Target - Benchmark

      Inception Date - September 2011

Performance

WAMCO GMS WAMCO GMS Benchmark

3 Month Fiscal YTD 1 Year 3 Year 5 Year 10 Year Since Inception

-10.0

0.0

10.0

R
et

ur
n 

(%
)

Performance

WAMCO GMS WAMCO GMS Benchmark

3 Month Fiscal YTD 1 Year 3 Year 5 Year 10 Year Since Inception

-10.0

0.0

10.0

R
et

ur
n 

(%
)

Market Values
WAMCO GMS

Market Value at Start of Quarter 127,223,006

Market Value at End of Quarter 184,778,476

% of Total Fund 8.1

3 Month
(%)

Fiscal YTD
(%)

1 Year
(%)

3 Year
(% p.a.)

5 Year
(% p.a.)

10 Year
(% p.a.)

Since
Inception
(% p.a.)

WAMCO GMS -0.2 3.7 7.0 5.2 3.6 - 4.7

WAMCO GMS Benchmark 0.6 1.7 2.3 2.5 2.5 - 2.6

Excess -0.8 2.0 4.7 2.7 1.1 - 2.1

3 Year Risk
WAMCO GMS

Portfolio Return 5.2

Portfolio Std Dev 5.1

Benchmark Return 2.5

Benchmark Std Dev 0.0

Tracking Error 5.1

Information Ratio 0.5

Gloucestershire County Council Pension Fund
Report to December 31, 2017

Western Asset Management - GMS

Page 17 of 22
State Street Global Services Performance Services

P
age 39



Manager Information

      Manager - Hermes

      Mandate - Property

      Target - B/M +0.5% net

      Inception Date - April 2005

Performance

Hermes Hermes Target Benchmark

3 Month Fiscal YTD 1 Year 3 Year 5 Year 10 Year Since Inception

0.0

10.0

20.0

R
et

ur
n 

(%
)

Performance

Hermes Hermes Target Benchmark

3 Month Fiscal YTD 1 Year 3 Year 5 Year 10 Year Since Inception

0.0

10.0

20.0

R
et

ur
n 

(%
)

Market Values
Hermes

Market Value at Start of Quarter 103,639,881

Market Value at End of Quarter 130,796,010

% of Total Fund 5.7

3 Month
(%)

Fiscal YTD
(%)

1 Year
(%)

3 Year
(% p.a.)

5 Year
(% p.a.)

10 Year
(% p.a.)

Since
Inception
(% p.a.)

Hermes 3.5 9.2 11.3 10.8 12.8 6.0 7.1

Hermes Target Benchmark 3.4 8.7 11.1 9.5 11.2 4.1 5.6

Excess 0.1 0.5 0.1 1.3 1.6 1.8 1.5

3 Year Risk
Hermes

Portfolio Return 10.8

Portfolio Std Dev 2.3

Benchmark Return 9.5

Benchmark Std Dev 2.1

Tracking Error 1.9

Information Ratio 0.7

Gloucestershire County Council Pension Fund
Report to December 31, 2017

Hermes

Page 18 of 22
State Street Global Services Performance Services

P
age 40



Manager Information

      Manager - CBREI - GMM

      Mandate - Property

      Target - B/M +0.5% net

      Inception Date - June 2011

Performance

CBREI CBREI Target Benchmark

3 Month Fiscal YTD 1 Year 3 Year 5 Year 10 Year Since Inception

0.0

10.0

20.0

R
et

ur
n 

(%
)

Performance

CBREI CBREI Target Benchmark

3 Month Fiscal YTD 1 Year 3 Year 5 Year 10 Year Since Inception

0.0

10.0

20.0

R
et

ur
n 

(%
)

Market Values
CBREI

Market Value at Start of Quarter 45,736,253

Market Value at End of Quarter 53,448,010

% of Total Fund 2.3

3 Month
(%)

Fiscal YTD
(%)

1 Year
(%)

3 Year
(% p.a.)

5 Year
(% p.a.)

10 Year
(% p.a.)

Since
Inception
(% p.a.)

CBREI 1.7 5.6 6.3 8.1 10.1 - 9.6

CBREI Target Benchmark 3.4 8.8 11.2 9.8 11.2 - 9.4

Excess -1.7 -3.2 -4.9 -1.7 -1.1 - 0.3

3 Year Risk
CBREI

Portfolio Return 8.1

Portfolio Std Dev 1.9

Benchmark Return 9.8

Benchmark Std Dev 2.0

Tracking Error 2.5

Information Ratio -0.7

Gloucestershire County Council Pension Fund
Report to December 31, 2017

CBREI - GMM

Page 19 of 22
State Street Global Services Performance Services

P
age 41



Performance

Golub Golub Benchmark

3 Month Fiscal YTD 1 Year 3 Year 5 Year 10 Year Since Inception

-10.0

0.0

10.0

R
et

ur
n 

(%
)

Performance

Golub Golub Benchmark

3 Month Fiscal YTD 1 Year 3 Year 5 Year 10 Year Since Inception

-10.0

0.0

10.0

R
et

ur
n 

(%
)

Manager Information

      Manager - Golub

      Mandate - Private Debt

      Target - Benchmark

      Inception Date - July 2017

3 Year Risk
Golub

Portfolio Return -

Portfolio Std Dev -

Benchmark Return -

Benchmark Std Dev -

Tracking Error -

Information Ratio -

Market Values
Golub

Market Value at Start of Quarter 11,180,263

Market Value at End of Quarter 11,088,525

% of Total Fund 0.5

3 Month
(%)

Fiscal YTD
(%)

1 Year
(%)

3 Year
(% p.a.)

5 Year
(% p.a.)

10 Year
(% p.a.)

Since
Inception
(% p.a.)

Golub 3.4 - - - - - -0.3

Golub Benchmark 1.3 - - - - - 2.6

Excess 2.1 - - - - - -2.9

Gloucestershire County Council Pension Fund
Report to December 31, 2017

Golub

Page 20 of 22
State Street Global Services Performance Services

P
age 42



Performance

Bluebay Bluebay Benchmark

3 Month Fiscal YTD 1 Year 3 Year 5 Year 10 Year Since Inception

0.0

10.0

R
et

ur
n 

(%
)

Performance

Bluebay Bluebay Benchmark

3 Month Fiscal YTD 1 Year 3 Year 5 Year 10 Year Since Inception

0.0

10.0

R
et

ur
n 

(%
)

Manager Information

      Manager - Bluebay

      Mandate - Private Debt

      Target - Benchmark

      Inception Date - August 2017

3 Year Risk
Bluebay

Portfolio Return -

Portfolio Std Dev -

Benchmark Return -

Benchmark Std Dev -

Tracking Error -

Information Ratio -

Market Values
Bluebay

Market Value at Start of Quarter 4,029,796

Market Value at End of Quarter 6,109,914

% of Total Fund 0.3

3 Month
(%)

Fiscal YTD
(%)

1 Year
(%)

3 Year
(% p.a.)

5 Year
(% p.a.)

10 Year
(% p.a.)

Since
Inception
(% p.a.)

Bluebay 1.1 - - - - - 3.0

Bluebay Benchmark 1.3 - - - - - 2.2

Excess -0.2 - - - - - 0.8

Gloucestershire County Council Pension Fund
Report to December 31, 2017

Bluebay

Page 21 of 22
State Street Global Services Performance Services

P
age 43



This report was prepared for you by State Street Bank and Trust Company (or its affiliates, “State Street”) utilizing scenarios, assumptions and reporting formats as mutually agreed between you and State Street.  While reasonable
efforts have been made to ensure the accuracy of the information contained in this report, there is no guarantee, representation or warranty, express or implied, as to its accuracy or completeness.  This information is provided “as-
is” and State Street disclaims any and all liability and makes no guarantee, representation, or warranty with respect to your use of or reliance upon this information in making any decisions or taking (or not taking) any actions.  State
Street does not verify the accuracy or completeness of any data, including data provided by State Street for other purposes, or data provided by you or third parties.  You should independently review the report (including, without
limitation, the assumptions, market data, securities prices, securities valuations, tests and calculations used in the report), and determine that the report is suitable for your purposes.

State Street provides products and services to professional and institutional clients, which are not directed at retail clients.  This report is for informational purposes only and it does not constitute investment research or investment,
legal or tax advice, and it is not an offer or solicitation to buy or sell any product, service, or securities or any financial instrument, and it does not transfer rights of any kind (except the limited use and redistribution rights described
below) or constitute any binding contractual arrangement or commitment of any kind.  You may use this report for your internal business purposes and, if such report contains any data provided by third party data sources,
including, but not limited to, market or index data, you may not redistribute this report, or an excerpted portion thereof, to any third party, including, without limitation, your investment managers, investment advisers, agents,
clients, investors or participants, whether or not they have a relationship with you or have a reasonable interest in the report, without the prior written consent of each such third party data source.  You are solely responsible and
liable for any and all use of this report.

Copyright © 2017 State Street Corporation, All rights reserved.

P
age 44



Brunel Pension Partnership BOB 

Page 1 of 6 
 

Brunel Oversight Board Meeting 
Minutes 
Purpose: To review Brunel/Client progress agree next steps 
Date and time: Friday 24 November 2017, 10:30 – 13:00 
Location: Brunel Offices, 101 Victoria Street, Bristol, BS1 6PU 

Dial-in details: 0330 336 1949 leader pin 461405 participant pin 429632 

 Invited: 
Pension Committee Representatives 
David Veale Avon  
John Chilver Buckinghamshire  
Derek Holley Cornwall  
Rufus Gilbert Devon  
Peter Wharf Dorset Phone 
Joanne Segars EAPF  Phone  (left at 12am)  
Ray Theodoulou Gloucestershire Chair  

Kevin Bulmer Oxfordshire 
Vice-Chair - 
Apologies 

Mark Simmonds Somerset Phone 
Tony Deane Wiltshire Phone 
 
Member representative observers 
Andy Bowman Scheme member rep.  
Ian Brindley Scheme member rep.  
   
Fund Officers and Representatives 
Liz Woodyard Avon, CG Apologies 
Tony Bartlett Avon  
Julie Edwards Buckinghamshire  
Mark Gayler Devon  
Richard Bates Dorset (finance) Phone 
Craig Martin EAPF CPO  
Mark Spilsbury Gloucestershire  
Sean Collins Oxfordshire  
Anton Sweet Somerset Apologies 
David Anthony Wiltshire Apologies 

Nick Buckland JLT Client Side Executive  

Sophie McClenaghan JLT Client Side Assistant Minutes 
 
Brunel Pension Partnership Ltd 
Denise Le Gal Brunel, Chair  
Steve Tyson Brunel Shareholder NED Apologies 
Matthew Trebilcock Brunel, CRD  
Dawn Turner Brunel, CEO  
Mark Mansley Brunel, CIO  

Page 45

Agenda Item 8



 

Page 2 of 6 
 

 

Item Agenda  Paper 
provided 

Owner Timing 

1 Election of Chair and Vice-Chair  NB 10.30 – 10.35 

5 mins 

 Voting for the roles of Chair and Vice Chair closed at Midnight on 16 
November. The vote resulted in Raymond Theodoulou being elected as 
Chair and Kevin Bulmer was elected Vice-Chair.   

 

2 Confirm agenda 

Requests for AOB 

Any new declarations of conflicts of 
interest 

Review 29 Sep BOB minutes  

Agenda 

 

C of Interests 

 

Minutes 

Chair 10.35 – 10.45 

10 mins 

 

 Requested AOB 

Query on who should be able to observe the BOB meetings and request 
for Pension Committees and Boards to see the BOB agenda and 
minutes. These items to be covered under BOB transparency in item 7.  

Conflicts of interest 

There were no new conflicts of interest received.  

It was requested that the conflicts of interest register was made more 
BOB specific. It was agreed that JLT would produce a BOB specific 
conflicts of interests register.  

29 Sep Minutes 

The BOB approved the minutes. All actions had been completed/ were 
covered on the agenda with the exception of one ongoing action.  

RT reminded the BOB that it is not a decision-making board, the BOB is 
an advisory board.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

JLT/ 11 Jan 

3 Code of conduct policy Code of 
conduct 

SC 10.45 - 11.00 

15 mins 

 After the last BOB meeting, the Client Group felt that the process of 
demonstrating who had prepared and reviewed the reports being 
presented could be improved. The Client Group have therefore 
implemented a cover template for all BOB papers. Any feedback on 
the covering template is welcomed.  The template was welcomed by 
the Chair. 

SC presented a draft Code of Conduct which the Client Group had 
produced to promote and maintain high standards of conduct. 

A legal review from Osborne Clarke confirmed that to formally include 
the policy, the terms of reference will require amendment which must 
be approved by Shareholders. Alternatively, the policy could be 
adopted informally.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 46



 

Page 3 of 6 
 

The Scheme Member Representatives queried how this policy would 
affect their observer role. It was noted that observers are free to provide 
feedback, however, should respect any confidential items as is the 
requirement of all members of BOB.  

Some queries were raised on the draft policy including:  

 whether members would be required to disclose all personal 
dealings; 

 whether members have to disclose any level of interest in the 
fund or if there will be a minimum disclosure level;  

 relevant legislation from the employment act to be referenced 
as a definition for bullying in section 10; and 

 the EAPF confirmed it is looking to ensure the policy also applies 
to its non-Local Government members. 

DT suggested that as Brunel’s Compliance Officer, Laura Chappell 
could review these queries for the BOB. The BOB requested the 
amendments be made and the finalised policy to be approved at the 
next BOB on 18 Jan.  

The BOB requested that the policy should be implemented formally; 
therefore, Shareholder approval requiring 20 working days notice will be 
required in advance of the AGM on 31 January. This notice will be 
required prior to the next BOB on 18 January.  It was agreed that the 
reserved matter will be issued requesting that the BOB ToR are updated 
to include a code of conduct and the formal approval of the policy will 
take place at BOB on 18 January and the ToR amended subject to 80% 
approval from the shareholders on this reserve matter.  

LC/ Client Group to finalise the Code of Conduct Policy for approval at 
BOB on 18 January.  

Brunel to send the shareholder notice asking for approval to incorporate 
the code of conduct in the terms of reference.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

LC/ CG/ 9 
Jan 

Brunel / 31 
Dec 

4 Brunel PP update 

 Engagement Sessions   
 Custody and Administrator 

contracts 

 Brunel 11.00 – 11.15 

15 mins 

 MT provided a brief update of Brunel including:  

 Recruitment is progressing well; 
 Oxfordshire transitioned custody on 15 November; 
 FCA application is progressing to expected timescales; 
 Fund Manager Engagement Days held on w/c 6 November, 3 x 

face to face meetings and 2 x webinars. 90 companies 
attended. Brunel has received positive feedback; 

 3x Stakeholder Engagement Days held on w/c 14 November. 
Brunel supported Client Group. Feedback detailed below; 

 2 special reserve matters have been issued- responses from 
Shareholders are required by 27 November; and 

 AGM to start at 15:00, notification will be going out to the 
shareholders soon, ability to appoint a proxy.  

Feedback from Stakeholder Engagement Days 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 47



 

Page 4 of 6 
 

 AB – members welcomed the engagement and wished the 
transparency to continue.  

 RG – feedback included “active, interactive, succinct and 
informative”.  

 TD – the only criticism was that some members felt performance 
fees question was left unanswered.  

Shareholder reserved matters 

 No known issues with the £225k shareholder agreement. 
 Devon’s committee have highlighted a concern with the 

remuneration policy shareholder notice. RG provided a 
statement from Devon summarising the view of its committee.  

 DT:  As per shareholder agreement, a special reserved matter 
requires unanimous shareholder approval. If this is not received 
then the remuneration policy will revert to the prior 
arrangement. Without the passing of the action, the policy 
reverts to no restriction. DT confirmed it is most likely that Brunel 
will still apply the 5% restriction even if it is not required to do so. 
Brunel will review whether to review/ amend/ reissue the 
shareholder matter.  

 TB: commented that the consequence of not approving wasn’t 
included.  

 It was agreed that going forward, shareholder notices will 
include details of the current position and the consequence 
should the notice be rejected. Brunel also agreed to engage 
with Shareholders via conference call when a reserved matter is 
issued to ensure they know the background to the notice.  

MT to send out the stakeholder engagement day slides post meeting.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Brunel / 
ongoing 

MT/ 30 Nov 

5 Brunel PP Business plan 2018/20 Business Plan 

(to follow) 

Brunel 11.15 – 12.00 

45 mins 

 It was noted that the business plan is a confidential item and should not 
be disclosed outside of the BOB. Brunel will provide a public version of 
the business plan at the AGM in January.  

The business case analysis will be completed annually by the Client 
Group.  

DT was asked to expand what was meant by operational costs under 
section 5 of the covering report. DT noted these included for example, 
HR, finance, tax. Next year requires more tax management therefore 
tax advice will be a large expense.  

TB: felt that the document didn’t provide details of what it will cost 
individual Funds. DT confirmed this detail will be included in the service 
agreement which has not yet been finalised. DT has estimated the cost 
savings for each of the Funds. DT to provide the individual detail to 
Funds via the Client Group. 

The Shareholder Agreement states that Brunel will provide the Funds 
with an overview of charges by February. Brunel confirmed it is on track 
to meet this deadline.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 48



 

Page 5 of 6 
 

TD: asked if the savings were still on track and when would funds see 
them. 

BOB approved the current form of the business plan to take forward to 
the Brunel Board meeting on 14 Dec.  

It was requested that any additional comments are be provided to DT 
by the end of November.  

Brunel proposed a call for shareholders on 15 December to discuss the 
outcomes of the Brunel Board and the issuing of further reserve matters. 
BOB agreed this would be useful. Brunel to arrange a call for 15 
December.   

DT/ 31 Dec 

 

 

 

 

 

BOB/ 30 Nov 

 

Brunel/  

30 Nov  

6 Portfolio update 

 Process 
 Future plans   

Portfolio 
update 

MM 12.00 – 12.45 

45 mins 

 MM spoke to the papers detailing the process for agreeing the  
portfolios which will form the Brunel investment offering. Brunel is hoping 
to have the core portfolio specifications available to clients by early 
2018. At 5 December CG meeting, the CG will be formalising the 
portfolio specification details. The outcomes from this process will then 
be brought to BOB on 18 January for ratification.  

Once the strategic allocation has been confirmed then Brunel will work 
with the fund’s officers to map out and initiate the transition of assets. 
Brunel are looking for Funds to have approved a definitive strategy by 
31 March, however changes can be made to strategic allocation, as 
might happen normally, as the transition progresses. Brunel noted it is 
happy to attend committee meetings/ provide training if required. It 
was also noted that the portfolios will evolve and will not be “set in 
stone” and will operate under an agreed Creation, Amendment and 
Deletion (CAD) policy. 

There was a query as to why the equity income portfolio had been 
removed. MM noted that there had been no client interest so it had 
been removed.  

To create a portfolio a fund must be prepared to invest at least 5% of 
their assets and it must be “sufficiently different” to the existing 
portfolios. If there is a single investor, then a portfolio will be left open as 
long as the investor has committed at least a 5% allocation. Brunel must 
consult the client group, as set out in the CAD Policy, before they can 
add, amend or delete portfolios.  

BOB resolved to: 

1. Approve the process for finalising the portfolio specifications 
(Appendix 1 paragraph 2.5). 

2. Approve the process for clients to confirm allocations to the 
underlying portfolios (Appendix 1 paragraph 3.7)  

3. Agree actions arising (Appendix 1 paragraph 3.8)  

 

7 AOB  

Future meeting dates 

 Chair 

 

12.45 – 13.00 

15 mins 

Page 49



 

Page 6 of 6 
 

- 18 January 2018 
- 22 March 2018 
- July and October meetings (TBC) 

 JLT to propose July and October meeting dates. It was requested that 
these avoid the third Thursday of the month. These will also need to fit in 
with the diary of Brunel Board meetings. 

BOB transparency 

It was agreed that a version of the minutes, with any confidential 
information redacted, is provided so it can be tabled at Pension 
Committee meetings should Funds wish to do so. Due to the time delay 
between meetings, the minutes will be circulated in draft form once 
approved by Chair and Vice-Chair.  

JLT to draft non-confidential minutes, provide to Chair and Vice-Chair to 
review before providing to the BOB members to include at Pension 
Committee meetings. 

DT read out the wording from terms of reference on attendance at BOB 
meetings. Only members (including non-voting members) shall have the 
right to attend BOB. Directors of the Brunel Board, shareholder NEDs, 
officers/ advisors may attend if invited. It is up to the Chair to approve 
requests to attend. The Chair emphasised that if sufficient reason and 
notice was given the request would be considered.  

The following methods of communication with members were 
highlighted to demonstrate transparency: 

 Regularly updated Brunel website, anyone signed up will 
automatically receive notification of new items 

 Six monthly reports 
 Engagements days which will take place at least once a year 
 Member of the transparency code 

 

The Chair requested that members consult other pools to see if anything 
else could be done. SC will raise this at the Cross Pool meeting next 
week and feedback to the BOB in January.  

JLT/ 31 Dec 

 

 

 

 

 

 

JLT/ BOB/  

10 Dec 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

SC / 18 Jan 

 

Produced: JLT on 13/12/2017 

Page 50



Pension Committee
9th February 2018

Annual Pensioner Newsletter 

Report of the Strategic Finance Director

The Annual Newsletter contains factual information which was designed to 
help LGPS members have a clearer understanding of the scheme.  

At its last meeting, the Committee considered the 2017 annual newsletter for 
pensioners, and agreed that the next newsletter should contain a reminder to 
pensioners to ensure that they contact the Pension Team and update 
personal information held as appropriate. In addition, it was noted that 
information on the National Fraud Initiative should be emphasised in the new 
version.

As agreed by the Committee, the draft newsletter for 2018 is now submitted 
for information. Narrative highlighted in the draft newsletter will be updated 
once the required information is available.

Recommendation

That the Committee notes the draft 2018 Annual Pensioner Newsletter.

Contact Officer

Mark Spilsbury – Head of Pensions (01452 328920)

Alan Marshall – Pension Administration Officer (01452 328866)

Page 51

Agenda Item 9



This page is intentionally left blank



Pensions Increase - Post88 GMP3% Pens 
inc/Compensation Pensions 96 inc
/Augmentation Pens 98 inc / Pens Increase-
CARE Main / Pens Increase-CARE 50:50 - 
Pensions Increase. These elements represent 
the inflation proofing in respect of the above 
and the Post88 GMP and GMP Pens 
Increment.
Pre88 GMP/Pre88 increment - These 
elements are the Guaranteed Minimum Pension 
(GMP) components at state pension age, as 
notified by the Department of Work & Pensions, 
in respect of your pre 5th April 1988 
membership.

Reminders
P60’s
It is important that when you receive your P60 
you keep it in a safe place for future reference, 
as should you require a duplicate of this 
document, there will be a charge made by the 
payroll office to provide this.
Payslips
Payslips are sent out automatically in April, May 
and October and where the difference in the net 
pension payment is £10 or more from the 
previous month.

Pension Entitlement
You are reminded that a pension entitlement 
under any of the above mentioned Schemes, is 
due solely to the person named on the pension 
advice slip and is not an entitlement due to any 
other relative or beneficiary. In the event of your 
death, your next of kin or other representative 
should let us know as soon as possible. 
Contact details are shown at the end of this 
newsletter. Please note that that your pension 
stops on the day you die, so any money paid 
that covers a period after the date you die has 
to be repaid. 

Change of Circumstances 
Local Government Pension Scheme Re-
employment
If you were awarded benefits under this 
Scheme your pension may be reduced or 
suspended if you decide to work again. Broadly 
speaking, if you are drawing a pension from the 
Local Government Pension Scheme and you 
get another job with either a local authority or 
another employer who uses the Local 
Government Pension Scheme, your pension 
may have to be adjusted if, together with the 
pay in your new job, the total is more than the 
pay you were receiving when you retired. 
Furthermore, it is possible that any prolonged 
period of re-employment could permanently 

affect any period of compensation already 
awarded for early retirement.
The regulations are quite complicated. The best 
advice is to contact the Pensions Section if you 
are in any doubt about your continuing 
entitlement to a pension. 
Any overpayment of pension caused by your 
failure to notify your re-employment to the 
County Council will be recovered from future 
pension payments.

Teachers’ Pension Scheme 
Remarriage and Cohabitation
If you are receiving a widow’s/widower’s 
pension under the above Scheme, then your 
pension will be suspended upon re-marriage or 
cohabitation. 
You must, therefore, tell us immediately, in 
writing, of any changes in your personal 
circumstances.

Moving house? Changing banks? 
Change of name and/or partnership 
status?
It is very important that you inform the pension 
payroll office immediately, by way of a *signed 
letter, should there be a change to your address 
or bank details; this will ensure that you 
continue to receive payment of your pension 
without any problems. To guarantee that your 
new details are correct and actioned on time, 
changes must be notified and received in the 
Payroll Office three weeks before the relevant 
pension pay day. 
Failure to send notification, by way of a *signed 
letter, for a change of address or bank details is 
likely to result in your pension payments being 
suspended until such time as your signed letter 
detailing the change(s) has been received. 
It is also very important that you inform this 
office immediately, by way of a *signed letter, 
should there be any change to your name 
and/or partnership status, this will ensure that 
you continue to receive payment of your 
pension without any problems.

* A signed letter, which must include your 
pension and national insurance number, can be 
submitted to the pension payroll office in one of 
the following ways:

By Post to: Business Service Centre, 
Gloucestershire County Council, Shire Hall, 
Westgate Street, Gloucester, GL1 2TG
By E-mail: as a scanned e-mail attachment 
sent to: bsc2@gloucestershire.gov.uk 
By Fax: sent to (01452) 547492

Please remember to also inform HMRC of your 
change of address, failure to do so could result 
in this office not being notified of future tax code 
changes for you.       

National Fraud Initiative

The Gloucestershire Pension fund participates 
in the Cabinet Office’s anti-fraud initiative, 
known as the National Fraud Initiative, an 
exercise to promote the proper spending of 
public money.

The County Council is required by law to 
protect the public funds it administers. It may 
share information provided to it with other 
bodies responsible for auditing or administering 
public funds in order to prevent and detect 
fraud. For this initiative, it is providing details of 
pensioners so that they can be compared to 
information provided by other public bodies. 
This will ensure, for example, that no pensions 
are being paid to persons who are deceased or 
no longer entitled and that occupational pension 
income is being declared when housing benefit 
is applied for.

Further information is available on our website 
at: www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/fairprocessing.  
A hard copy of information available on our 
website can be provided on request.

Getting Divorced?
As part of a divorce settlement, the Courts have 
the power to make either a pension sharing 
order or an earmarking order against your 
occupational pension. 
Pension Sharing Order
If a pension sharing order is made, your 
pension will be reduced by whatever the Court 
decides and the value of the benefits you have 
lost will be converted into a life-time pension for 
your former spouse. If you require a Cash 
Equivalent Value of your pension benefits for 
divorce purposes then you must put your 
request in writing to the Pensions Office.
Earmarking Order
If the Court makes an earmarking order, your 
pension will still belong to you, but there will be 
a requirement for us to make payments from it 
to your former spouse. 

Pension pay days 2018/19
27th April 2018 30th May 2018
28th June 2018 30th July 2018
30th August 2018 27th September 2018
30th October 2018 29th November 2018
28th December 2018 30th January 2019
27th February 2019 28th March 2019

At certain times of the year e.g. Christmas, your 
advice slip may arrive early due to the 
unpredictable nature of postal deliveries. Your 
pension will not, however, be available earlier 
than the dates shown above.

Gloucestershire LGPS Pension Fund
Annual Report 2016/17

The 2016/2017 Annual Report of the 
Gloucestershire LGPS Fund was presented to 
the employers, contributors and pensioners of 
the scheme at the Annual General Meeting at 
Shire Hall on 1st December 2017. This report 
can be viewed on-line at: 
www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/pensionsinvestme
nts. Hard copies are also available by writing to 
the Pension Accountant, Strategic Finance, 
Gloucestershire County Council, Shire Hall, 
Westgate Street, Gloucester GL1 2TG.

Funding Position and Investment Returns 

During 2016/17, largely due to excess returns 
on assets, partially offset by the fact that bond 
yields have fallen placing a higher value on the 
liabilities of the fund, the overall funding position 
of the fund improved, with the value of the 
assets as at 31st March 2017 rising to £2,082 
million, which were sufficient to meet 82.1% of 
the liabilities accrued up to that date. The 
resulting deficit as at 31st March 2017 had 
reduced to £417 million.

During 2016/17 the Fund achieved a +21.3% 
return on its investments. This was just below 
the average local authority universe return of 
21.4 %, as calculated by PIRC Local Authority 
Pension Performance Analytics (who monitors 
the performance of pension funds) and placed 
Gloucestershire in 28th position of a universe of 
60 local authority pension funds.   

As in the latest year, the Gloucestershire Fund 
has performed very close to the average over 
longer terms too. The Gloucestershire Fund 
achieved annualised returns of 10.9% over 5 
years and 6.8% over 10 years compared to the 

P
age 53

mailto:bsc2@gloucestershire.gov.uk
http://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/fairprocessing
http://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/pensionsinvestments
http://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/pensionsinvestments


average annual returns of local authority funds 
of 10.7% over 5 years and 7.0% over 10 years

The performance of all of the Gloucestershire 
Pension Fund investment managers are kept 
under regular review to help ensure that our 
management policies have the best possible 
prospect of adding value over a full market 
cycle. During the period covered by this report 
the Fund ended its investment mandate with 
one of the Global Equity Managers and 
reinvested these funds with another current 
Global Equity Manager to improve investment 
returns.

Triennial Actuarial Valuations

The valuation sets the minimum level of the 
employers’ contribution rates to ensure the 
long-term solvency of the Fund (so there will be 
sufficient money in the Fund to meet all pension 
payments for its existing and future 
pensioners). At the 2016 valuation the overall 
funding level was 79.6% and the resulting 
contribution rates for each employer are 
effective from 1st April 2017. The Actuarial 
Valuation Reports are available on the 
Gloucestershire LGPS website at: 
www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/pensionsinvestme
nts

Annual Meeting 2018- A Date for your Diary

The 2018 Annual Meeting will be held at 12.00 
noon on xxxxxxxxxxxxxxxx 2018 in the Council 
Chamber at Shire Hall, Gloucester. We look 
forward to seeing you.

Contact Details
Do you have a question about your Tax 
code?
HM Revenue and Customs tell us how much 
tax to take from your pension through your tax 
code.
We are unable to change your tax code unless 
HMRC tell us to do so. If you have any queries 
about your tax code or tax liability, please 
contact H M Revenue & Customs (HMRC) on 
0300 2003300. When you contact HMRC you 
will need to quote reference 214/G1P, together 
with your Pension Number* and National 
Insurance Number.
Do you have a question regarding the 
payment of your pension?
For all queries relating to the payment of your 
pension you should contact the Pension Payroll 
office on 01452 324163 or 324130 and quote 
your pension* number. Alternatively you can 
write to the address given below or e-mail your 
query to the pension payroll office at: 
bsc2@gloucestershire.gov.uk 

Do you have a question regarding the 
Regulations under which your benefits were 
calculated or an on-going entitlement?
For any queries relating to the Regulations 
under which your benefits were calculated i.e. 
queries relating to the actual calculation of your 
benefits or the on-going entitlement of any 
dependant benefits in relation to your pension, 
you should contact the pensions office on 
01452 328888 quoting your Pension* and 
National Insurance number. Alternatively you 
can write to the address given below or e-mail 
your query to the pensions office at: 
pensions@gloucestershire.gov.uk 

If you need to contact either the Payroll or 
Pensions Section, then please address your 
enquiries to:-
Payroll – Business Service Centre, 
Gloucestershire County Council, Shire Hall, 
Westgate Street, Gloucester, GL1 2TG

Pensions - Gloucestershire County Council, 
Shire Hall, Westgate Street Gloucester, Gl1 
2TG
Website: www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/pensions  

Please ensure that you quote your Pension* 
and National Insurance Number in the 
correspondence.

* Your pension number is shown on your 
payslip under ‘Personnel Number’

Welcome to the 2018 Newsletter of 
the Gloucestershire Pension 
Schemes.
As in previous years, this Newsletter aims to 
provide useful information and news to the 
beneficiaries of the Schemes administered by 
Gloucestershire County Council, and covers:

 The Local Government Pension Scheme 
The Teachers’ (Compensation) Scheme

We hope you continue to find this Newsletter 
useful and that you will let us know of any 
changes in your personal circumstances so that 
we can continue to provide you with an efficient 
service. Contact details are shown at the end of 
the newsletter. 

Annual pensions increase – 1%
Pensions Increase Review 2018
This year Public Service Pensions have been 
increased by 1%, with effect from 10th April 
2017, and this increase is based on the 
Consumer Prices Index in the 12 months to 
September 2017. 
Your pension will be increased if you are over 
age 55 or you retired on the grounds of ill 
health. You will get the increase too if your 
pension is a spouse’s, dependant’s or a 
children’s pension.
Set out below are details showing the 
commencing dates and percentage increases.

Commencement of Pension Increase
Before 25th April 2016  1%
26th April 2016 to 25th May 2016         0.92%
26th May 2016 to 25th June 2016        0.83%
26th June 2016 to 25th July 2016        0.75%
26th July 2016 to 25th Aug 2016         0.67%
26th Aug 2016 to 25th Sept 2016        0.58%
26th Sept 2016 to 25th Oct 2016         0.50%
26th Oct 2016 to 25th Nov 2016  0.42%
26th Nov 2016 to 25th Dec 2016         0.33%
26th Dec 2016 to 25th Jan 2017         0.25%
26th Jan 2017 to 25th Feb 2017         0.17%
26th Feb 2017 to 25th March 2017     0.08%
26th March 2017 onwards                 NIL

As the increase is payable from 10th April 2017 
your April pension payment will include 21 days 
at the new rate, the May payment will include 
the full amount. 
NOTE: Generally speaking, any increase due 
on the Guaranteed Minimum Pension (GMP) (if 
applicable) will be paid by the Department of 
Works & Pensions (D.W.P.) with your State 
Pension except for G.M.Ps accruing after 5th 
April 1988 when the lesser of 3% or the full 
pensions increase will be paid with your Public 
Service Pension. If the full pensions increase is 
greater than 3%, then the balance will be paid 
by the D.W.P. with your State Pension.
Please note however:
If you are a female aged between 60 and your 
State Pensions Age (SPA), the full amount of 
your pension payable from us will continue to 
receive the full percentage increase until you 
attain your SPA. 
If you attain SPA between 6th April 2016 and 
the 5th December 2018, the full amount of your 
pension payable from us will continue to receive 
the full percentage increase. Likewise, if you 
attain SPA between the 6th December 2018 and 
the 5th April 2021, the full amount of your 
pension payable from us will also continue to 
receive the full percentage increase, this 
extended provision was confirmed by the 
Government in January 2018.   

Your Pension Advice Slip
Your pension comprises several elements that 
are funded from a number of sources; details of 
the abbreviations used in your advice slip are 
given below:
Pension / Pension-CARE Main / Pension 
CARE 50:50 - The proportion of your pension in 
respect of your membership of the relevant 
pension scheme, less any GMP amounts.
Additional Pension - The proportion of your 
pension that is funded entirely by your 
employer.
Augmentation 98 - The element of your 
pension due in respect of any additional 
membership awarded by your employer since 
April 1998.
Pensions Compensation / Compensation 
Pens 96 - The element of your pension due in 
respect of any compensatory added years 
awarded by your employer pre/post April 1996.
Post88 - Post88 GMP Pens increment - As 
above but in respect of your post 5th April 1988 
membership.

Pensions
Newsletter
2018

P
age 54

http://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/pensionsinvestments
http://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/pensionsinvestments
mailto:bsc2@gloucestershire.gov.uk
mailto:pensions@gloucestershire.gov.uk
http://www.gloucestershire.gov.uk/pensions


Document is Restricted

Page 55

Agenda Item 12
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 65

Agenda Item 13
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 79

Agenda Item 14
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 111

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 115

Agenda Item 15
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 133

Agenda Item 16
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 139

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 141

Agenda Item 17
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank



Document is Restricted

Page 143

Agenda Item 18
By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	5 Minutes -
	Nov 17 Action Sheet FINAL

	6 Pension Fund Risk Register
	Copy of Gloucestershire LGPS Pension Fund RR FINAL for Feb 18 Pension Committee

	7 Market Valuations and Quarterly Performance Review of the Pension Fund: Quarter 4
	GloucestershireCC Quarter to Dec2017 V2revised

	8 Brunel Pension Partnership Oversight Board Minutes
	9 Annual Pensioners Newsletter
	Pensions Newsletter 2018 draft 180130

	12 Exempt Minutes
	13 Brunel Pension Partnership Update Report
	14 Brunel Pension Partnership Investment Portfolios and briefing on Passive mandates
	Brunel Briefing on Passive Selection exempt

	15 Economic Review Q4 2017 & Feedback from Managers Meetings
	16 Implementation of New Investment Proposals
	Attachment 1 to Asset allocation report to Feb 18 Committee FINAL

	17 Admission Body Requests
	18 Investment Manager Presentation CBRE

